‘ SIeepWeII

Date: July 26, 2022

To

The Secretary The Manager,

(Listing Department) The National Stock Exchange India
The BSE Limited Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 Bandra(E), Mumbai-400051

BSE Scrip Code: 540203 NSE Symbol: SFL

Subject: Intimation of Annual General Meeting to be held over video
conference

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached Notice of Fiftieth (AGM) and Annual Report for the Financial
Year 2022. The same will be made available on the Company’s website, at
http://www.sheelafoam.com

The Company is providing remote e-voting facility to its member to cast their
vote electronically on the business as set forth in the Notice of the AGM through
the electronic voting system of Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL). Mr.
Amitabh, Partner, AVA Associates, Company Secretaries, appointed as a
Scrutinizer. The Result of e-voting shall be declared on August 20, 2022.

The Cut-off” Record date fixed for the purpose of ascertaining the member
eligible for e-voting as Friday, August 11, 2022,

The e-voting facility shall be commenced at 10.00 a.m. on August 14, 2022 and
ended on 05.00 p-m. on August 17, 2022.

Thanking you.
Yours faithfully,

For Sheela Foagimited

Y.
QM BF
(Md. Iquebal Ahmad)

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

SHEELA FOAM LTD.
#14, Sleepwell Tower , Sector 135, Noida- 201301
Ph: Int-91(0)-120-4162200 * Fax: Int-91-(0)-120-4162282, 4162283 + Email: contactus@sheelafoam.com
Regd. Office: 604 Ashadeep, 9 Hailey Road, New Delhi-110001, India » Ph: Int-91(0)-11-22026875-76
Toll Free: 1800 103 6664 « www.sleepwellproducts.com » www.sheelafoam.com
CIN-L74899DL1971PLCO05679
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Notice

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FIFTIETH (50TH)
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHEELA FOAM LIMITED
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 18TH AUGUST 2022 AT
10:00 A.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE (VC)/
OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (OAVM) (HEREIN AFTER
REFERRED TO AS ELECTRONIC MODE) TO TRANSACT
THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year 2022
(Standalone and Consolidated) including audited
Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date and the Reports of Board of
directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tushaar Gautam
(DIN 01646487), who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014(including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being enforce), M/s. Mahesh
Singh & Co, Cost Accountants, appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the
Audit of the cost records of the Company, for the
Financial Year 2022-23, be paid ¥ 1,50,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Fifty Thousand only) plus applicable tax.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT the Company hereby accords its
approval for the payment of ¥ 15,00,000 (Rupees
Fifteen Lakh only) commission to each Independent
Directors, for one year of service, that is over and
above the sitting fees payable to the Independent
Directors.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company hereby accords
its approval to the reappointment of Mr. Rahul
Gautam (DIN 0019299), as the Managing Director for
a period of five years with effect from 1t April, 2022
on the terms and conditions of appointment and
remuneration as approved by the Board/Nomination
and Remuneration Committee time to time, material
terms of which are set out in the explanatory
statement attached to this notice, and the period
of his office shall be not be liable to determination
by retirement of directors by rotation and the Board
of Directors be and is hereby authorised to alter and
vary such terms of appointment and remuneration
so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be agreed to by
the Board of Directors and Mr. Rahul Gautam.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company hereby
accords its approval to the reappointment of Ms.
Namita Gautam (DIN 00190463), as the Whole-
time Director for a period of five years with effect
from 1t April, 2022 on the terms and conditions
of appointment and remuneration as approved
by the Board/Nomination and Remuneration
Committee time to time, material terms of which
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are set out in the explanatory statement attached
to this notice, and the period of her office shall be
liable to determination by retirement of directors
by rotation and the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorised to alter and vary such terms of
appointment and remuneration so as not to exceed
the limits specified in Schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013 as may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors and Ms Namita Gautam.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company hereby
accords its approval to the reappointment of Mr.
Rakesh Chahar (DIN 00180587), as the Whole-
time Director for a period of five years with effect
from 15t April, 2022 on the terms and conditions of
appointment and remuneration as approved by the
Board/Nomination and Remuneration Committee
time totime, material terms of which are setoutinthe
explanatory statement attached to this notice, and
the period of his office shall be liable to determination
by retirement of directors by rotation and the Board
of Directors be and is hereby authorised to alter and
vary such terms of appointment and remuneration
so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be agreed to by
the Board of Directors and Mr. Rakesh Chahar.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company hereby
accords its approval to the reappointment of Mr.
Tushaar Gautam (DIN 01646487), as the Whole-
time Director for a period of five years with effect
from 1t April, 2022 on the terms and conditions of
appointment and remuneration as approved by the
Board/Nomination and Remuneration Committee
timetotime, materialterms of which are setoutinthe
explanatory statement attached to this notice, and
the period of his office shall be liable to determination
by retirement of directors by rotation and the Board
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of Directors be and is hereby authorised to alter and
vary such terms of appointment and remuneration
so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be agreed to by
the Board of Directors and Mr. Tushaar Gautam.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149 and
152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time
and pursuant to the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
by the Board of Directors of the Company, term of
Mr. Som Mittal (DIN: 00074842), Non-executive
Independent Director, be increased form four (4)
years to five (5) years and he will continue to hold
the office of independent director till 6* June 2026
and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149 and
152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time
and pursuant to the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
by the Board of Directors of the Company, term of
Mr. Anil Tandon (DIN: 00089404), Non-executive
Independent Director, be increased form three (3)
years to five (5) years and he will continue to hold
the office of independent director till 6t June 2026
and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149 and
152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications(s) or enactment thereof for the time
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being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time
and pursuant to the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by
the Board of Directors of the Company, term of Lt.
Gen. (Dr) V.K. Ahluwalia (DIN: 08078092), Non-
executive Independent Director, be increased form
three (3) years to five (5) years and he will continue to
hold the office of independent director till 4" March
2026 and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149 and
152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications(s) or enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time
and pursuant to the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by
the Board of Directors of the Company, term of Ms.
Meena Jagtiani (DIN: 08396893), Non-executive
Independent Director, be increased form three (3)
years to five (5) years and she will continue to hold
the office of independent director till 7" April 2027
and she shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 13, 62 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the company, the approval of the company, be and
is hereby accorded to increase the authorised share
capital of the company from from ¥ 44,01,05,000
(Rupees Forty Four Crore One Lakh Five Thousand
Only) divided into 8,80,21,000 (Eight Crore Eighty
Lakh Twenty One Thousand) equity shares of
% 5 (Rupees Five Only) each to ¥ 100,00,00,000
(Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) divided into
20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) equity shares of
% 5 (Rupees Five Only) each by way of creating
additional capital of ¥ 55,98,95,000 (Fifty-five Crore
Ninety Eight Lakh Ninety Five Thousand) consisting
of 11,19,79,000 (Eleven Crore Nineteen Lakh Seventy
Nine Thousand) equity shares of ¥ 5 (Rupees Five
Only) each and consequently clause no. V of the
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memorandum of association of the company be
substituted by the following:

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
% 100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crores
Only) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore)
equity shares of ¥ 5 (% Five Only) each.”

To approve ‘SHEELA FOAM - Employees Stock
Option Plan 2022’ and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment of the Act for the
time being in force and in accordance with the
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company and the provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021 including any modifications thereof or
supplements thereto (“the SEBI SBEB and Sweat
Equity Regulations”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the
SEBI LODR Regulations”),the Listing Agreement
entered into with the Stock Exchange where the
securities of the Company are listed and any
other applicable laws for the time being in force
and subject to such other consents, permissions,
sanctions and approvals which may be agreed by
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be
deemed to include the Compensation Committee
/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee),
consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby
accorded to introduce and implement the 'SHEELA
FOAM - Employees Stock Option Plan 2022' (“SF
ESOP - 2022") the salient features of which are
detailed in the Explanatory Statement to this Notice
and to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any
time in one or more tranches to or for the benefit
of such person(s) who are in the employment of the
Company, whether working in India or outside India,
including Director of the Company, whether Whole-
time director or not, including a non-executive
director, but excluding Promoter, Promoter group
and independent Directors, a director who, either
himself or through his relative or through anybody
corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than
ten per cent of the outstanding equity shares of the
company and such other persons as may from time
to time be allowed to be eligible for the benefit under
the provisions of applicable laws and Regulations
prevailing from time to time (hereinafter collectively
referred to as "Employees”) selected on the basis of
criteria decided by the Board under the SF ESOP -
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2022, such number of stock options convertible into
Equity Shares of the Company (“Options"), in one or
more tranches, not exceeding 2,400,000 (Twenty
four Lakhs) equity shares of face value of ¥ 5/- each
(Rupees Five), at such price and on such terms and
conditions as may be fixed or determined by the
Board in accordance with the SF ESOP - 2022, and all
provisions of applicable laws.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme may also
envisage provisions for providing financial assistance
to the Eligible Employees to enable them to acquire,
purchase or subscribe to the said Securities of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Act/Regulations."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to issue and allot Equity Shares
directly to the eligible Employees upon exercise of
Options from time to time in accordance with the SF
ESOP - 2022 and such equity shares shall rank pari-
passu in all respects with the then existing equity
shares of the Company."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate
action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues,
merger, buy-back, scheme of arrangement and
sale of division or other re-organisation of capital
structure of the Company, as applicable from time
to time, if any additional equity shares are issued
by the Company for the purpose of making a fair
and reasonable adjustment to the Stock Options
granted earlier, the above ceiling shall be deemed to
be increased to the extent of such additional equity
shares issued."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the equity
shares of the Company are either sub-divided or
consolidated, then the number of equity shares
to be issued and allotted on exercise of Options
granted under the SF ESOP - 2022 and the exercise
price of Options granted under the SF ESOP - 2022
shall automatically stand augmented or reduced,
as the case may be, in the same proportion as the
present face value of ¥ 5/- per equity share bears to
their revised face value of the equity shares of the
Company after such sub-division or consolidation,
without affecting any other rights or obligations
of the employees who have been granted Stock
Options under the SF ESOP - 2022."

"RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT without prejudice to the
generality of the above; the Board, which includes
the Compensation/ Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is authorised to formulate, evolve,
decide upon and implement the SF ESOP - 2022,
determine the detailed terms and conditions of the
aforementioned SF ESOP - 2022 including but not
limited to the quantum of the Options to be granted
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per employee, the number of Options to be granted
in each tranche, the terms or combination of terms
subject to which the said Options are to be granted,
the exercise period, the vesting period, the vesting
conditions, instances where such Stock Options
shall lapse and to grant such number of Options,
to such employees of the Company, at price, at
such time and on such terms and conditions as
set out in the SF ESOP - 2022 and as the Board or
the Compensation/ Nomination and Remuneration
Committee may in its absolute discretion think fit."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee be designated as the
Compensation Committee in accordance with
Regulation 5(1) and Regulation 5(2) of the SEBI SBEB
and Sweat Equity Regulations for the purposes of
administration of SF ESOP - 2022."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board is hereby
authorised to make any modifications, changes,
variations, alterations or revisions in the SF ESOP
- 2022 as it may deem fit, from time to time or to
suspend, withdraw or revive the SF ESOP - 2022 from
time to time, in conformity with applicable laws,
provided such variations, modifications, alterations
or revisions are not detrimental to the interests of
the Employees."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall take
necessary steps for listing of the Equity Shares
allotted under the SF ESOP - 2022 on the Stock
Exchanges, where the Shares of the Company
are listed in accordance with the provisions of the
SEBI SBEB and Sweat Equity Regulations, the SEBI
LODR Regulations and other applicable laws and
regulations."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem
necessary, expedient or proper and to settle all
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in
relation to formulation and implementation of the
SF ESOP - 2022 at any stage including at the time
of listing of the equity shares issued herein without
requiring the Board to secure any further consent or
approval of the Members of the Company to the end
and intent that they shall be deemed to have given
their approval thereto expressly by the authority of
this Resolution."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers
conferred herein to Compensation/ Nomination
and Remuneration Committee or such other
Committees, with power to sub-delegate to any
Executives/Officers of the Company to do all such
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acts, deeds, matters and things as also to execute
such documents, writings etc., as may be necessary
in this regard.”

To extend approval of 'SHEELA FOAM - Employees
Stock Option Plan 2022’ to the employees of
Holding Company, Associate Company(ies), Group
Company(ies) and its Subsidiary Company (ies)
[present and future] and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Section 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act,2013
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, the Securities and
Exchange Board Of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021
including any modifications thereof or supplements
thereto (“the SEBI SBEB and Sweat Equity
Regulations”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the
SEBI LODR Regulations”), the Listing Agreement
entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the
securities of the Company are listed and any other
applicable laws for the time being in force and subject
to such other consents, permissions, sanctions and
approvals as may be necessary and which may be
agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term
shall be deemed to include any Committee including
the Compensation/ Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to exercise the powers conferred by
this Resolution), consent and approval of the
Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to extend
the benefits of 'SHEELA FOAM - Employees Stock
Option Plan 2022’ (“SF ESOP - 2022") proposed in
the resolution number 14 above to such persons
who are in the employment of the Holding Company,
Group Company(ies), Associate Company(ies) andits
Subsidiary Company(ies) (whether now or hereafter
existing, whether incorporated in India or overseas
as may be from time to time be allowed under the

Date: 12t May, 2022
Place: Noida
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prevailing laws, rules and regulations and / or any
amendments thereto from time to time), whether
working in India or out of India and to the directors
of the Holding Company, Group Company(ies),
Associate  Company(ies) or its  Subsidiary
Companies, and to such other persons as may from
time to time be allowed, under prevailing laws, rules
and regulations, and/or amendments thereto from
time to time, on such terms and conditions as may
be decided by the Board, and selected on the basis
of criteria prescribed by the Board, at such price or
prices in one or more tranches and on such terms
and conditions, as may be fixed or determined by the
Board in accordance with the SF ESOP - 2022."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
creating, offering, issuing, allotting and listing of
the Securities, the Board be authorized on behalf of
the Company to make any modifications, changes,
variations, alterations or revisions in the SF ESOP -
2022 from time to time or to suspend, withdraw, or
revive SF ESOP - 2022 from time to time, provided
such variations, modifications, alterations or
revisions are not detrimental to the interests of the
Employees."

"RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT for the purpose of giving
effect to this Resolution, the Board be authorized
to determine terms and conditions of issue of the
Securities and do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem
necessary for such purpose and with power on
behalf of the Company to settle any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard
without requiring to secure any further consent or
approval of the Shareholders of the Company.”

By order of the Board

Md. Iquebal Ahmad
Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
("MCA") General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated April
8, 2020 and 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular
No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with General
Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular
No. 19/21 dated 8t December 2021, 21/2021 dated
14t December 2021 and 02/2022 dated May 5 2022
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) has
permitted the holding of the annual general meeting
through Video Conferencing (“VC") or through Other
Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM"), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") vide
its circular dated January 15, 2021 read with May
12, 2020 (“SEBI Circulars") has granted relaxation in
respect of sending physical copies of annual report
to shareholders and requirement of proxy for general
meetings held through electronic mode.

Therefore the 50%" Annual General Meeting
("Meeting” or "AGM") of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM on Thursday, August 18, 2022 at
10:00 a.m. (IST). The proceedings of AGM deemed
to be conducted at the Registered Office of the
Company situated at 604, Ashadeep, 9 Hailey Road,
New Delhi 110001.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which the directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act,
will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM. All documents referred
to in the Notice will also be available for electronic
inspection without any fee by the members from
the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date
of AGM, i.e. August 18, 2022. Members seeking
to inspect such documents can send an email to
investorrelation@sheelafoam.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since
this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be
available for the Annual General Meeting and hence
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed
to the Notice.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) setting out material
facts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 to
15 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto.
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Institutional/Corporate  Shareholders (i.e. other
than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc) are required to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its
Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/
Authorisation etc., authorising its representative to
attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM
on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting.
The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to
the Scrutinizer by email through their registered email
address to avafirm@gmail.com with copies marked to
the Company at investorrelation@sheelafoam.com
and to its RTA at delhi@linkintime.co.in

In case the shareholder's email ID is already
registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent “RTA"/Depositories, log in details
for e-voting are being sent on the registered email
address.

In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/
their email address with the Company/its RTA/
Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account
mandate for receipt of dividend, the following
instructions to be followed:

(i) Kindly log in to the website of our RTA, Link
Intime India Private Ltd., www.linkintime.co.in
under Investor Services > Email/Bank detail
Registration- fill in the details and upload the
required documents and submit.

OR
(i) In the case of Shares held in Demat mode:

The shareholder may please contact the
Depository Participant (“"DP") and register the
email address and bank account details in the
demat account as per the process followed and
advised by the DP.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are
advised to exercise due diligence and notify any
change in address or demise of any member as soon
as possible. Members are also advised not to leave
their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic
statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned Depository Participant and holdings
should be verified.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting along
with the Annual Report for the financial year 2021-
22 is being sent only by electronic mode to those
Members whose email addresses are registered with
the Company/Depositories in accordance with the
aforesaid MCA Circulars and circular issued by SEBI
dated May 12, 2020. Members may note that the
Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report
for the financial year 2021-22 will also be available
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on the Company's website www.sheelafoam.com;
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited at www.
nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com respectively.
Members can attend and participate in the Annual
General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has
mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form
are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to
their Depository Participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts.

Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM
shall be counted for the purposes of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

SEBI has also mandated that for registration of
transfer of securities, the transferee(s) as well
as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy of their PAN
card to the Company for registration of transfer of
securities.

Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of Regulation
36 of the Listing Regulations in respect of the
Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at
the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of
the notice. Requisite declarations have been received
from the Directors for seeking appointment/ re-
appointment.

Voting through electronic means

I.  In compliance with provisions of Section 108
of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment
Rules, 2015 (‘Amended Rules 2015’), Regulation
44 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (SS2) issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, the Company is pleased to provide its
members facility to exercise their right to vote
on resolutions proposed to be considered at
the 50* Annual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services. The
facility of casting the votes by the members
using an electronic voting system from a
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote
e-voting”) will be provided by Link Intime India
Private Limited (LIIPL).

II. The members who have cast their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast
their vote again.
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lll. A person who is not a member as on the cut-
off date should treat this Notice for information
purpose only.

IV. The e-voting period commences on Sunday,
August 14, 2022 (10:00 a.m. IST) and ends on
Wednesday, August 17, 2022 (5:00 p.m. IST).
During this period, members holding shares
either in physical or dematerialized form, as on
cut-off date, i.e. as on 11 August, 2022 may cast
their votes electronically. The e-voting module
will be disabled by Link Intime for voting
thereafter.

A member will not be allowed to vote again on any
resolution on which vote has already been cast. The
voting rights of members shall be proportionate
to their share of the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date, i.e. as on
August 11, 2022.

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders
post change in the Login mechanism for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode,
pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020:

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode can vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants only post 9*" June, 2022.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts to
access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode is given below:

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services
website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a personal computer
or on a mobile. On the e-Services home
page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will
be able to see e-Voting services under
Value added services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you
will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website
for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period.
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2. If you are not registered for IDeAS
e-Services, option to register is available
at  https://eservices.nsdl.com  Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either
on a personal computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system
is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen-digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you
will be redirected to “InstaVote” website
for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi /
Easiest, can login through their user id and
password. Option will be made available to
reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login
to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.

com/myeasi/home/login or WWW.
cdslindia.com and click on New System
Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest
the user will be able to see the E Voting
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting
service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
“InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Iftheuseris notregistered for Easi/Easiest,
option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access
e-Voting page by providing demat account
number and PAN No. from a link in www.
cdslindia.com home page. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded
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in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links
fortherespective ESPi.e. LINKINTIME. Click
on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected
to “InstaVote” website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode) login
through  their  depository  participants
You can also login using the login credentials of
your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication,
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected
to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding
securities in physical form/ Non-Individual
Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is
given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding
sharesin physical form / Non-Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off
date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of
Link Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

2. Click on “Sign Up" under ‘'SHARE HOLDER' tab
and register with your following details: -

A. UserlD:

Shareholders holding shares in physical
form shall provide Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company. Shareholders
holding shares in NSDL demat account
shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed
by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding
shares in CDSL demat account shall
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent
Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders
who have not updated their PAN with the
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company
shall use the sequence number provided
to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) /
Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded
with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY
format)



D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank
Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP/Company.

*Shareholders holding shares in physical
form but have not recorded ‘C' and 'D’, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL
form, shall provide ‘D' above

Set the password of your choice (The
password should contain minimum
8 characters, at least one special
Character (@!#5&*), at least one
numeral, at least one alphabet and at
least one capital letter).

+  Click “confirm” (Your password is now
generated).

3. Click on ‘Login’ under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab.

4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image
Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see
the notification for e-voting. Select 'View' icon.

2. E-voting page will appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast
your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the
entire Resolution details, click on the 'View
Resolution’ file link).

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour /
Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote,
click on ‘No' and accordingly modify your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on
the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in and register themselves as
‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' They
are also required to upload a scanned certified true
copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power
of attorney etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorised representative(s)
in PDF format in the 'Custodian / Mutual Fund /
Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify
the same.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in physical mode/ Institutional
shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may
contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending
arequest at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on:
- Tel: 022 - 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat
mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any
technical issues related to login through Depository
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call

at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990
and 1800 22 44 30

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request
at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 22- 23058542-43.

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can
use the “Forgot Password” option available on the
e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in

Click on ‘Login’ under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and
further Click ‘forgot password?’

Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image
Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on
“SUBMIT".

In case shareholders is having valid email address,
Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/
her choice by providing the information about the
particulars of the Security Question and Answer,
PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four
digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password
should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one
special character (@!#5&”), at least one numeral, at
least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical

Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No

+ Folio Number registered with the Company
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the
password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available atabovementioned
depository/ depository participants website.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders/ members holding shares
in physical form, the details can be used only
for voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.

During the voting period, shareholders/
members can login any number of time till they
have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular
“Event”.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode:

In case shareholders/ members holding securities
in demat mode have any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may
contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at toll free no.: 1800

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode

with NSDL 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30
Members facing any technical
Individual issue in login can contact

Shareholders CDSL helpdesk by sending a

holding securities  request at helpdesk.evoting@

in demat mode cdslindia.com or contact

with CDSL at 022- 23058738 or 22-
23058542-43.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in physical mode/ Institutional
shareholders & evoting service Provider is
LINKINTIME.

In case shareholders/ members holding securities
in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have
any queries regarding e-voting, they may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote
e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email
to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022
-4918 6000.
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Process and manner for attending the Annual
General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and
register with your following details: -

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter
your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio
No

Shareholders/ members holding
shares in CDSL demat account shall
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

Shareholders/ members holding
shares in NSDL demat account shall
provide 8 Character DP ID followed
by 8 Digit Client ID

«  Shareholders/ members holding
shares in physical form shall provide
Folio Number registered with the
Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent
Account Number (PAN) (Members who
have not updated their PAN with the
Depository Participant (DP)/

Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded
with your DP/Company.

Click "Go to Meeting” (You are now registered
for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked
for the meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the
software requirements and kindly ensure to install
the same on the device which would be used to
attend the meeting. Please read the instructions
carefully and participate in the meeting. You may
also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any
support on the dedicated number provided to you in
the instruction/ InstaMEET website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak
during the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet:

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during
the meeting must register their request 3 days
in advance with the company on the specific
email id created for the general meeting.



2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum
first basis depending upon the provision made
by the client.

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial
number” once they mark attendance for the
meeting.

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the
panellist, via active chat-board during the
meeting.

5. Please remember speaking serial number
and start your conversation with panellist by
switching on video mode and audio of your
device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when
moderator of the meeting/ management will
announce the name and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote
during the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the
scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting,
shareholders/ members who have not exercised
their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the
vote as under:

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link
for e-Voting “Cast your vote"

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio
No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile
number/ registered email Id) received during
registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit'.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution
Description” and against the same the option
“Favour/ Against” for voting.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option
i.e. "Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the
number of shares (which represents no. of
votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/
Against’.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e.
Favour/Against as desired and you have decided
to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will
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be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on “"Confirm", else to change your vote,
click on "Back” and accordingly modify your
vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify or change
your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present
in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet
facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.
Shareholders/ Members who have voted through
Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting
will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual
General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they
will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join
the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected
through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet
with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.
It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or
LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries
regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-
49186175.

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM
proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET,
shareholders/ members who are registered as
speakers for the event are requested to download
and install the Webex application in advance by
following the instructions as under:
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a) Pleasedownload andinstall the Webex application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.
html/

é % O ‘E] webex.com/downloadshtml *‘ = L LQ

alaln
cisco Webex Solutions ~ Webex Devices ~ Plans & Pricing  Leamn ~ Q Host  Join  Signin v Start for Free

Webex Meetings Webex Teams
Looking for real time video conferencing? Looking for messaging and team collaboration?
HD video for face-to-face meetings One-on-one or group messaging
Flexible audio-only conference call options Digital two-way whiteboarding
Easy screen sharing Rich content and file sharing
Meet across any device Video calling

Download for Windows @ wnload for Windows

Download Teams VDI

Also available here: Also available here:

aliali,
cisco Webex Solutions ~  Webex Devices Plans & Pricing Learn - Q) Host Join sign in ~ Start for Free

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
Double-click the The Webex Meetings setup Once installed
webexapp.msi file you wizard will launch. Follow the app will launch

downloaded the instructions to set up. automatically.

To open the app double-click
the Webex Meetings icon on your
desktop. | |
N
Run Save ~ Cancel > |

What do you want to do with webexapp.msi (88.1 MB)?
From: akamaicdn.webex.com

dalialn
cisco Webex Solutions v Webex Devices Plans & Pricing Learn ~ Q Host Join Signin v

5 Cisco Webex Meetings - InstallShield Wizard x
S

Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Cisco
‘Webex Meetings

The Instalshield(R) Wizard wil install Cisco Webex Meetings on
your computer. To continue, click Next.

Step 3
I\zﬁeﬁmig‘(lﬁram is protected by copyright law and nce inStE "ed
app will launch
utomatically.

To open the app double-click
the Webex Meetings icon on your
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Step 1

Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.

1(A)

Now

If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join

1(B)
chrome or Run a temporary

application.

If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the

application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now

cisco Webex Solutions ~+  Webex Devices

Plans & Pricing

Learn ~

ﬁ Cisco Webex Meetings - InstallShield Wizard

X
License Agreement

dinl
Please read the folowing license agreement carefily. cisco

Step 1

Double-click th
webexapp.msi filg
downloaded

InstallShield

ICISCO WEBEX LLC LICENSE AGREEMENT (AS APPLICABLE TO THE
IPARTICULAR DOWNLOAD)

IIMPORTANT NOTICE--PLEASE READ PRIOR TO USING THIS SOFTWARE: This
ticense agreement ('License Agreement”) is 2 legal agreement betwveen you (either an individual

Jor 2n entity) and Cisco Webes LLC ("Webex") for the use of Webex software you may be
required to download and install to vse certain Websx services (such software, together with

the underlying documentation if made available to you, the "Softwars"). By clicking on the
[button containing the "] accept” language, by installing the Software or by otherise sing the
Software, you asres to be bound by the terms of this License Agreement. IF YOU DO NOT
|AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, CLICK ON THE BUTTON v

(@1 accept the terms in the license agreement

(D1 do not accept the terms in the license agreement

< Badk Cancel

cisco Webex Solutions v+ Webex Devices

Plans & Pricing

Learn ~

() Host  Join  Signin v

v/

Step 3
nce installed
app will launch
utomatically.

Q Host Join Signin v

Step 1

Double-click th
webexapp.msi filg
downloaded

Instzlishield

ﬁ Cisce Webex Meetings - InstallShield Wizard X
Ready to Install the Program
(i
The wizard is ready to begin installation, cisco \/
Click Install to begin the installation.
If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, dick Back. Click Cancel to
exit the wizard,

Step 3
nce installed
app will launch
utomatically.

< Back Cancel

or

b)
process mentioned as under:

N
cisco Webex

Event Information:

Event status:
Date and time:

Ruration:
Description:

By joining this event, you are acceplting the Cisco Webex Terms of

Statement

Join Event Now

If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the

=)

English

‘You cannot join the event now because it has not started.

First name:
Last name:

Email address:

Event password:
Senvice and Privacy

I you are the host, 5z

your event
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
Item No. 3

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has approved at their Meeting held on 12t
May, 2022 the appointment of M/s. Mahesh Singh &
Co., Cost Accountants, New Delhi (Firm Registration
No. 100441), as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of
the cost records of the Company pertaining to products
covered by Central Excise Tariff Act, manufactured by the
Company, for the financial year ending 315t March, 2023 at
a remuneration of ¥ 1,50,000/- (One Lakh Fifty Thousand
only) plus applicable taxes.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the members
of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is
sought for passing an ordinary resolution as set out at
Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending
31t March, 2023.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. The
Board recommends the passing of the resolution as set
out at Item No. 3 as an ordinary resolution.

The Board recommends this resolution for your approval.

Item No. 4

The Board at the meeting held on 12 May, 2022, have
recommended for the approval of the Members,
payment of ¥ 15,00,000/-(Rupees Fifteen Lakh only) by
way of commission to each Independent Directors of the
Company for the completion of one year of service .

The Independent Directors (and their relatives) are
interested in this Resolution in so far as the same relates
to their respective commission.

None of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
or their relative, is interested in the resolution set out at
Item No. 4.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at
their meeting held on 12% May, 2022, proposed the
reappointment of Mr. Rahul Gautam as Managing
Director for a period of five years with effect from 15t April,
2022. Material terms of remuneration are set out herein
below and the period of his office shall not be liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation.
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The material terms of remuneration of Mr. Rahul Gautam
are as under:

Salary, Allowances and Commission/Incentive
(hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”): a) Salary
Comprising

(i) Basic salary : At the rate not exceeding ¥ 6,00,000
(Rupees Six Lakhs only) per month; and

(ii) (ii) Allowances/Perquisites : Not exceeding one
time of the Basic salary, with increments as per the
annual increment decided by the HR, from time to
time, subject to a ceiling on increment of 15% in a
year (following April to March year) over the existing
Basic salary and Allowances, as on 15t April every
year, commencing from 1t April, 2023.

b) Incentive: At the rate not exceeding 1.5% of the
profit before tax.

Except Mr. Rahul Gautam, being an appointee, Ms. Namita
Gautam and Mr. Tushaar Gautam, both Whole-time
Directors of the Company, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the resolution set out at Item No. 5.

As per Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013, a
Company shall appoint or continue the employment of
any person as Managing Director, who attain the age
of seventy years after passing the Special Resolution in
General Meeting.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

ItemNo: 6

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed reappointment
of Ms. Namita Gautam as Whole-time Director for a period
of five years with effect from 1%t April, 2022. Material
terms of remuneration are set out herein below and the
period of her office shall be liable to determination by
retirement of directors by rotation.

The material terms of remuneration of Ms. Namita
Gautam are as under:

Salary, Allowances and Commission/Incentive
(hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”):

a) Salary Comprising
(i) Basic salary : At the rate not exceeding

%5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakhs only) per month;
and



(i) Allowances/Perquisites : Not exceeding one
time of the Basic salary, with increments as per
the annual increment decided by the HR, from
time to time, subject to a ceiling on increment
of 15% in a year (following April to March year)
over the existing Basic salary and Allowances,
as on 1¢t April every year, commencing from 1¢t
April, 2023.

b) Incentive : At the rate not exceeding 0.75% of the
profit before tax.

Except Ms. Namita Gautam, being an appointee, Mr. Rahul
Gautam, Managing Director and Mr. Tushaar Gautam,
Whole-time Directors of the Company, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6.

As per Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013, a
Company shall appoint or continue the employment of
any person as Whole-time Director, who attain the age
of seventy years after passing the Special Resolution in
General Meeting.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item No 7

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed reappointment
of Mr. Rakesh Chahar as Whole-time Director for a period
of five years with effect from 1%t April, 2022. Material
terms of remuneration are set out herein below and the
period of his office shall be liable to determination by
retirement of directors by rotation.

The material terms of remuneration of Mr. Rakesh Chahar
are as under:

Salary, Allowances and Commission/Incentive
(hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”):

a) Salary Comprising

(i) Basic salary At the rate not exceeding
¥ 4,00,000 (Rupees Four Lakhs Only) per
month; and

(i) Allowances/Perquisites : Not exceeding one
time of the Basic salary, with increments as per
the annual increment decided by the HR, from
time to time, subject to a ceiling on increment
of 15% in a year (following April to March year)
over the existing Basic salary and Allowances,
as on 1¢t April every year, commencing from 1t
April, 2023.
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b) Incentive : At the rate not exceeding 0.75% of the
profit before tax.

Except Mr. Rakesh Chahar, being an appointee, none
of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item
No. 7 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item No 8

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed reappointment
of Mr. Tushaar Gautam as Whole-time Director for a period
of five years with effect from 15t April, 2022. Material
terms of remuneration are set out herein below and the
period of his office shall be liable to determination by
retirement of directors by rotation.

The material terms of remuneration of Mr. Tushaar
Gautam are as under:

Salary, Allowances and Commission/Incentive
(hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”):

a) Salary Comprising

(i) Basicsalary: Atthe rate not exceeding3 200,000
(Rupees Four Lakhs Only) per month; and (ii)
Allowances/Perquisites : Not exceeding one
time the Basic salary, with increments as per
the annual increment decided by the HR, from
time to time, subject to a ceiling on increment
of 15% in a year (following April to March year)
over the existing Basic salary and Allowances,
as on 1%t April every year, commencing from 1=t
April, 2023.

b) Incentive: At the rate not exceeding 0.75% of the
profit before tax.

Except Mr. Tushaar Gautam, being an appointee, Mr. Rahul
Gautam, Managing Director and Ms. Namita Gautam,
Whole-time Directors of the Company, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 8.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item No:9

Considering the plan of expansion and acquisitions ahead,
the Company need the guidance of the Independent
Directors. The Board recommended to increase the
second term of all the Independent Directors to five years.
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The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed to increase the
term of appointment of Mr. Som Mittal as an Independent
Director from four years to five years.

Except Mr. Som Mittal, being an appointee, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 9 of the
accompanying Notice. Mr. Som Mittal is not related to any
Director of the Company.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item 10:

Considering the plan of expansion and acquisitions ahead,
the Company need the guidance of the Independent
Directors. The Board recommended to increase the
second term of all the Independent Directors to five years.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed to increase the
term of appointment of Mr. Anil Tandon as an Independent
Director of the Company from three years to five years.

Except Mr. Anil Tandon, being an appointee, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 10 of
the accompanying Notice. Mr. Anil Tandon is not related
to any Director of the Company.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item No 11:

Considering the plan of expansion and acquisitions ahead,
the Company need the guidance of the Independent
Directors. The Board recommended to increase the
second term of all the Independent Directors to five years.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed to increase the
term of appointment Lt Gen (Dr.) Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia
as an Independent Director from three years to five years.

Except Lt Gen (Dr.) Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia, being an
appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 11 of the accompanying
Notice. Lt Gen (Dr.) Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia is not related
to any Director of the Company.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.
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Item No : 12

Considering the plan of expansion and acquisitions ahead,
the Company need the guidance of the Independent
Directors. The Board recommended to increase the
second term of all the Independent Directors to five years.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their
meeting held on 12t May, 2022, proposed to increase
the term of appointment Ms. Meena Jagtiani as an
Independent Director of the Company from three years
to five years.

Except Ms. Meena Jagtiani, being an appointee, none
of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item
No. 12 of the accompanying Notice. Ms. Meena Jagtiani is
not related to any Director of the Company.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval.

Item no 13

The present authorized share capital of the company is
44,01,05,000 (Rupees Forty-Four Crore One Lakh Five
Thousand Only) divided divided into 8,80,21,000 (Eight
Crore Eighty Lakh Twenty One Thousand) equity shares
of 5 (Rupees Five Only). The company may need further
capital for future bonus, ESOP and other form of issue
and has decided to increase the authorised capital to ¥
100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) divided
into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) equity shares of ¥ 5
(Rupees Five Only). The increase in capital ¥ 55,98,95,000
(Fifty-five Crore Ninety Eight Lakh Ninety Five Thousand)
consisting of 11,19,79,000 (Eleven Crore Nineteen Lakh
Seventy Nine Thousand) equity shares of ¥ 5 (Rupees
Five Only). This increase in the authorised capital needs
approval of the shareholders of the company by passing
an ordinary resolution. Consequently, the capital clause
of the Memorandum of Association of the company, i.e.
clause V shall also get amended.

The consent of the members, therefore, are being sought
for passing the aforesaid resolution of the notice as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Item No 14 & 15:

Stock Options represent a reward system based on
performance. They help companies attract, retain and
motivate the best available talent. Stock Options also
provide a company with an opportunity to optimise its
personnel costs. This also provides an opportunity to
employees to participate in the growth of the company,
besides creating long term wealth in their hands.

Further, as the business environment is becoming
increasingly competitive, it is important to attract and
retain qualified, talented and competent personnel in



the Company. Your Company believes in rewarding its
Employees including employees of the Holding Company,
Group Company(ies), Associate Company(ies) and/or its
Subsidiary Company (ies), if any, for their continuous
hard work, dedication and support, which has led the
Company and its Holding Company, Group Company(ies),
Associate Company(ies) and/or its Subsidiary Company
(ies) on the growth path.

Keeping in line with the above, '‘SHEELA FOAM -
Employees Stock Option Plan 2022' (‘the Scheme')
has been formulated by the Company and to be
implemented by Compensation / Nomination &
Remuneration Committee constituted under Regulation
19 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 in accordance with the requirements of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee and
Sweat Equity Benefits) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI SBEB
and Sweat Equity Regulations”) issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws. The Scheme has been approved by the
Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 12t May, 2022,
subject to the approval of the members.

The Scheme will be operated and administered under
the superintendence of the Company's Compensation
Committee / Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
which is a Committee of the Board of Directors, the
majority of whose Members are Independent Directors.
The Compensation Committee / Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will formulate the detailed
terms and conditions of the Scheme including:

a. the quantum of options, shares or benefits as the
case may be, per employee and in aggregate under a
scheme;

b. thekind of benefits to be granted under this scheme;

c. the conditions under which options, shares or other
benefits as the case may be, may vest in employees
and may lapse in case of termination of employment
for misconduct;

d. the exercise period within which the employee can
exercise the options and that options would lapse
on failure to exercise the same within the exercise
period;

e. the specified time period within which the employee
shall exercise the vested options or in the event of
termination or resignation;

f.  the right of an employee to exercise all the options,
as the case may be, vested in him at one time or at
various points of time within the exercise period;

g. the procedure for making a fair and reasonable
adjustment to the entitlement including adjustment
to the number of options and to the exercise price
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in case of corporate actions such as rights issues,
bonus issues, merger, sale of division and others. In
this regard, the following shall, inter alia, be taken
into consideration by the compensation committee:

i. the number and price of options shall be
adjusted in a manner such that total value to
the employee of the options remains the same
after the corporate action;

ii. the vesting period and the life of the options
shall be left unaltered as far as possible to
protect the rights of the employee(s) who is
granted such options;

the grant, vesting and exercise of shares, options or
in case of employees who are on long leave;

eligibility to avail benefits under this scheme in case
of employees who are on long leave;

the procedure for funding the exercise of options;
and

the procedure for buy-back of specified securities
issued under these regulations, if to be undertaken
at any time by the company, and the applicable
terms and conditions, including:

(i) permissible sources of financing for buy-back;

(i) any minimum financial thresholds to be
maintained by the company as per its last
financial statements; and

(iii) limits upon quantum of specified securities that
the company may buy-back in financial year.

shall frame suitable policies and procedures to
ensure that there is no violation of securities laws
including the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
Relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003,
as amended from time to time, by the trust, the
company and its employees, as may be applicable

Approve forms, writings and/or agreements for use
in pursuance of the SF ESOP - 2022. The Board/
Compensation/ NRC Committee shall frame
suitable policies and procedures to ensure that there
is no violation of securities laws including Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent
and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securities
Market) Regulations, 2003 by the Company and its
Employees, as applicable.
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n. Any other related or incidental matters.
Major details of the Scheme are as given below: -

“SHEELA FOAM - Employees Stock Option Plan
2022" ('SF ESOP - 2022') has been formulated by the
Company and to be implemented by Compensation
Committee/Nomination&RemunerationCommittee
constituted under Regulation 19 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in
accordance with the requirements of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI
SBEB and Sweat Equity Regulations”) issued by SEBI
and other applicable laws. The Scheme has been
approved by the Board of Directors at their Meeting
held on 12.05. 2022, subject to the approval of the
members.

The total number of options to be granted

The total number of options that may, in the
aggregate, be issued would be such number of
options which shall entitle the option holders to
acquire in one or more tranches upto 2,400,000
(Twenty-four Lakhs) equity shares of face value of
% 5/-each (orsuchotheradjustedfigure forany bonus,
stock splits, buy-back, scheme of arrangement or
consolidations or other re-organisation of the capital
structure of the Company as may be applicable from
time to time).

SEBI SBEB and Sweat Equity Regulations require
that in case of any corporate action(s) such as
rights issues, bonus issues, buy-back, scheme
of arrangement merger and sale or division, and
others, a fair and reasonable adjustment needs to
be made to the Options granted. Accordingly, if any
additional Equity Shares are issued by the Company
to the Option grantees for making such fair and
reasonable adjustment, the above ceiling Shares
shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of
such additional equity shares issued.

Anemployee may surrender his/hervested /unvested

options at any time during / post his employment
with the company. Any employee willing to surrender
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his/her options shall communicate the same to the
Board or Committee in writing.

Vested options lapsed due to non-exercise, surrender
and/or unvested options that gets cancelled due to
resignation or any other separation conditions of
Option grantees, surrendered or otherwise, would
be available for being re-granted at a future date.
The Board is authorized to re-grant such lapsed /
cancelled / surrendered options as per the provisions
of SF ESOP - 2022.

Identification of classes of employees entitled to
participate and be beneficiaries in the Scheme.

All employees working in India or out of India and
Directors (whether Managing/Whole time Director
or not) of Company and its Holding Company, Group
Company(ies), Associate Company(ies)and/or its
Subsidiary Company(ies), (present or future) (excluding
promoters and an employee who is a Promoter oraperson
belonging to the Promoter Group) and further excluding
a director who either by himself or through his relative or
through any Body Corporate, directly or indirectly holds
more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the
Company and excluding Independent Directors as may be
decided by the Compensation Committee / Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

The class of Employees eligible for participating in the
Scheme shall be determined on the basis of the grade,
number of years' service, performance, role assigned
to the employee and such other parameters as may be
decided by the Compensation Committee / Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in its sole discretion from
time to time.

The options granted to an Employee will not be
transferable to any person and shall not be pledged,
hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any
other manner.

Requirements of vesting and period of vesting

Vesting of options may commence afteraperiod of notless
than one yearfrom the date of individual grant. The vesting
may occur in one or more tranches, subject to the terms
and conditions of vesting, as stipulated in the ESOP-2022.
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Following table shall be applicable in case of various scenarios (during employment) for vesting and exercising:

Sr.
No.

Separations

Vested Options

Unvested Options

1

Resignation

All Vested Options as on date of
submission of resignation may be
exercised by the Option Grantee on or
before his last working day with the
Company.

All Unvested Options on the date of
submission of resignation shall stand
cancelled with effect from that date.

Termination

(With cause like fraud,
misconduct etc.)

All Vested Options which were not
allotted at the time of such termination
shall stand cancelled with effect from
the date of such termination.

All Unvested Options on the date of such
termination shall stand cancelled with
effect from the termination date.

Termination (Without
cause)

All Vested Options which were not
allotted at the time of such termination
may be exercised by the Option Grantee
on or before his last working day with
the Company.

All Unvested Options on the date of such
termination shall stand cancelled with
effect from the termination date.

Retirement or early
Retirement approved by
Company

All vested Options shall vest as per
original vesting schedule and may be
exercised by the Option Grantee within
the originally allowed exercise period.

All Unvested Options shall vest as per
original vesting schedule and may be
exercised by the Option Grantee within
the originally allowed exercise period.

Death

All Vested options, granted under a
scheme to him/her till his/her death shall
vest, with effect from the date of his/her
death, in the legal heirs or nominees of
the deceased employee, as the case may
be and such options may be exercised by
the Option Grantee's nominee or legal
heir immediately after, but in no event
later than 12 months from the date of
Death.

All Unvested Options as on the date of
death shall vest immediately and may
be exercised by the Option Grantee's
nominee or legal heir/s within 12 months
from the date of Death.

6

Permanent Disability

All Vested options, granted to him/
her under a scheme as on the date of
permanent incapacitation shall vest in
him/her on that day and such options
may be exercised by the Option Grantee
or, if the Option Grantee is himself,
unable to exercise due to such disability,
the nominee or legal heir, immediately
after, but in no event later than 12
months from the date of such disability.

All Unvested Options as on the date of
such Permanent Disability shall vest
immediately and can be exercised by the
Option Grantee or, if the Option Grantee
is himself unable to exercise due to such
incapacity, the nominee or legal heir
immediately after, but in no event later
than 12 months from the date of such
disability.

7

Abandonment*

All the Vested Options shall stand

cancelled.

All the Unvested Options shall stand
cancelled.

8

Any other reason not
specified above

The NRC / Compensation Committee
shall decide whether the Vested Options
as on that date can be exercised by the
Option Grantee or not, and such decision
shall be final.

All Unvested Options on the date of
separation shall stand cancelled with
effect from that date.

*In case of any regulatory changes warranting any change in vesting schedule/ conditions/exercise period in any of the above
separation conditions, the provisions of such change shall apply.

**The Board/Committee, at its sole discretion shall decide the date of cancellation of Option's and such decision shall be binding
on all concerned. Provided that, in accordance with Applicable Law, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the
Company shall not vary the terms of the Scheme in any manner which may be detrimental to the interests of the Employees.
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Maximum period within which the options shall be
vested

The maximum vesting period may extend up to 5 (five)
years from the date of grant of options, unless otherwise
decided by the Compensation / Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

Exercise price or pricing formula

Exercise Price means the price at which the Option
Grantee is entitled to acquire the equity shares pursuant
to the options granted and vested in him/her under the
Scheme.

The Exercise Price shall be as may be decided by the
Committee as is allowed under the SBEB and Sweat
Regulations which in any case will not be lower than
the face value of the equity shares of the Company on
the date of such grant. Further the Exercise Price can
be different for different set of employees for options
granted on same / different dates. The same shall be
subject to any fair and reasonable adjustments that may
be made on account of corporate actions of the Company
in order to comply with the applicable laws.

No amount shall be payable by the option grantee at the
time of grant.

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove,
amount paid/payable, if any, by the employee at the
time of the grant, vesting or exercise of the options will
be forfeited if the employee does not exercise the same
within the exercise period.

Exercise period and process of exercise

The Exercise period shall not be more than 5 (five) years
from the date of respective vesting of Options. The
options granted may be exercised by the Grantee at one
time or at various points of time within the exercise period
as determined by the Committee from time to time.

The Vested options shall be exercisable by the employees
by a written application (which will include making
applications online using any ESOP administration
software) to the Company expressing his/ her desire to
exercise such options in such manner and on such format
as may be prescribed by the Compensation / Nomination
and Remuneration Committee from time to time. The
options shall lapse if not exercised within the specified
exercise period. The options may also lapse, under certain
circumstances even before the expiry of the specified
exercise period.

Payment of the Exercise Price shall be made by a
crossed cheque or a demand draft drawn in favour of the
Company, or by any other payment methods prevalent in
RBI recognized banking channels or in such other manner
and subject to such procedures as the Board/Committee
may decide.
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Appraisal Process for determining the eligibility of
Employees to the Scheme.

The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of
the Employee will be specified by the Compensation /
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and will be
based on criteria such as the grade of Employee, length
of service, performance record, merit of the Employee,
future potential contribution by the Employee and/
or by any such criteria that may be determined by
the Compensation / Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Maximum number of options to be issued per Employee
and in the aggregate

The maximum number of options to be granted per
employee per grant and in aggregate shall not exceed
2,400,000 (Twenty-four Lakhs).

Further the number of Options that may be granted to
any specific identified employee under SF ESOP - 2022
shall not be equal to or exceeding the number of Shares
equivalent to one per cent (01%) of the Issued Capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
Company and in aggregate if the prior specific approval
from members of the Company through a special
resolution to this effect is not obtained.

Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per
employee under a Scheme

The Maximum quantum of benefits underlying the
options issued to an eligible employee shall depend upon
the Market Price of the shares as on the date of sale of
shares arising out of Exercise of options.

Whether the scheme is to be implemented and
administered directly by the Company or through a trust

The Scheme will be implemented directly by the Company

under the guidance of the Compensation / Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Whether scheme involves new issue of shares by the
Company or Secondary acquisition by the trust

The Scheme will involve only new issue of shares by the
Company.

The amount of loan to be provided for implementation
of the scheme(s) by the company to the trust, its tenure,
utilization, repayment terms, etc

Not Applicable

Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject
to limits specified under the regulations) that can be
made by the trust for the purposes of the scheme(s).

Not Applicable



Disclosure and accounting policies

The Company shall conform to the accounting policies
specified in Regulation 15 of the SEBI (SBEB and Sweat
Equity) Regulations.

Further the Company shall disclose details of Grant, Vest,
Exercise and lapse of the Employee Stock Options in the
Directors’ Report or in an annexure thereof as prescribed
under SEBI (SBEB and Sweat Equity) Regulations or any
other Applicable Laws as in force. Further the Company
shall follow the laws/regulations applicable to accounting
and disclosure related to Employee Stock Options,
including but not limited to SEBI (SBEB and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as
well as the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee
Share-based Payments and/ or any relevant Accounting
Standards as may be prescribed by the Regulatory
authorities from time to time, including the disclosure
requirements prescribed therein.

Method of Valuation of options

The Company follows fair value method for computing
the compensation cost, if any, for the options granted.
The company will follow IFRS/ IND AS/ any other
requirements for accounting of the Stock options as are
applicable to the Company for the same.

Since the company opts for expensing of share-based
employee benefits using the fair value method, the
following statement will not be applicable viz.

In case the company opts for expensing of share-based
employee benefits using the intrinsic value intrinsic value,
the difference between the employee compensation cost
so computed and the employee compensation cost that
shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value,
shall be disclosed in the Directors’ report and the impact
of this difference on profits and on earnings per share
("EPS") of the company shall also be disclosed in the
Directors’ report.

Lock-in

The Shares issued upon exercise of Options shall be freely
transferable and shall not be subject to any lock-in period
restriction after such exercise. However, the Board or the
Committee as may be authorized by the Board, may, in
some cases, provide for lock-in of shares issued upon the
exercise of Options.

Provided that the transferability of the Shares shall be
subject to the restriction for such period in terms of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading), Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time or for such other period as may be stipulated from
time to time in terms of Company’s Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading.

Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified
securities covered under the SEBI SBEB and Sweat Equity
Regulations.
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The Board of Directors / the Compensation Committee
shall, subject to the applicable provisions of any of the
SEBI Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions, have right to specify the procedure
for buy-back of the Employee Stock Options issued
under this Scheme, if to be undertaken at any time by
the company, and the applicable terms and conditions,
including:

(i) permissible sources of financing for buy-back;

(i) any minimum financial thresholds to be maintained
by the company as per its last financial statements;
and

(iii) limits upon quantum of the Employee Stock Options
that the company may buy-back in financial year.

Rights of the option holder

The employee shall not have right to receive any
dividend or to vote or in any manner enjoy the benefits
of a shareholder in respect of option granted to him, till
shares are allotted upon exercise of option.

Consequence of failure to exercise option

All unexercised options shall lapse if not exercised on or
before the exercised period ends.

No amount shall be payable by the option grantee at
the time of grant and hence no amount is required
to be forfeited even if an employee does not exercise
the options within exercise period and accordingly no
adjustment is required to be made for the same.

Other terms

The Board or Compensation / Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall have the absolute
authority to vary, modify or alter the terms of the Scheme
in accordance with the regulations and guidelines as
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
or regulations that may be issued by any appropriate
authority, from time to time, unless such variation,
modification or alteration is detrimental to the interest of
the Option Grantees.

The Board or Compensation / Nomination and
Remuneration Committee may, if it deems necessary,
modify, change, vary, amend, suspend or terminate the SF
ESOP - 2022, subject to compliance with the Applicable
Laws and Regulations.

The shares may be allotted directly to the Option Grantees
in accordance with the Scheme and such Scheme may
also contain provisions for providing financial assistance
to the Employees to enable the Employees to acquire or
subscribe to the shares.

Certificate from Secretarial Auditors

In the case of every company which has passed a
resolution for the scheme(s) under these regulations, the
Board of Directors shall at each annual general meeting
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place before the shareholders a certificate from the
secretarial auditors of the company that the scheme(s)
has been

implemented in accordance with these regulations and
in accordance with the resolution of the company in the
general meeting.

Terms of the scheme:

A company may by special resolution of its shareholders
vary the terms of the schemes offered

pursuant to an earlier resolution of the general body but
not yet exercised by the employees, if such variation is
not prejudicial to the interests of the employees:

Notwithstanding the provisions of sub-regulation (1),
a company shall be entitled to vary the terms of the
schemes to meet any regulatory requirement without
seeking shareholders’ approval by special resolution.

Subject to the proviso to clause (1), the company may by
special resolution in a general meeting vary the terms of
the schemes offered pursuant to an earlier resolution of
the general body but not yet exercised by the employee
provided such variation is not prejudicial to the interests
of the Option Grantees.

The notice for passing special resolution for variation
of terms of the schemes shall disclose full details of the
variation, the rationale therefore, and the details of the
Option Grantees who are beneficiaries of such variation.

The Company may re-price the options as the case may
be which are not exercised, whether or not they have
been vested if the terms of the grants were rendered
unattractive due to fall in the price of the shares in the
stock market;

Provided that the company ensures that such re-pricing
shall not be detrimental to the interest of the Option
Grantees and approval of the shareholders in general
meeting has been obtained for such re-pricing.

Transferability of Employee Stock Options:

The Options granted to an employee shall not be
transferable to any person and shall not be pledged,
hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in any
manner. However, in the event of the death of the Option
Grantee, the right to exercise all the Options granted
to him till such date shall be vest in his legal heirs or
nominees.

In the event of death of the employee while in
employment, all the options, SAR or any other benefit
granted under a scheme to him/her till his/her death shall
vest, with effect from the date of his/her death, in the
legal heirs or nominees of the deceased employee, as the
case may be.
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In case the employee suffers a permanent incapacity
while in employment, all the options, SAR or any other
benefit granted to him/her under a scheme as on the date
of permanent incapacitation, shall vest in him/her on that
day.

In the event of resignation or termination of an employee,
all the options, SAR or any other benefit which are granted
and yet not vested as on that day, shall expire:

Provided that an employee shall, subject to the terms and
conditions formulated by the

compensation committee under sub-regulation (3) of
regulation 5 of these regulations, be entitled to retain all
the vested options, SAR or any other benefit covered by
these regulations.

In the event that an employee, who has been granted
benefits under a scheme, is transferred or deputed to
an associate company prior to vesting or exercise, the
vesting and exercise as per the

terms of grant shall continue in case of such transferred or
deputed employee even after the transfer or deputation.

In the event that an employee who has been granted
benefits under a scheme, is transferred pursuant to
scheme of arrangement, amalgamation, merger or
demerger or continued in the existing company, prior to
the vesting or exercise, the treatment of options in such
case shall be specified in such scheme of arrangement,
amalgamation, merger or demerger provided that such
treatment shall not be prejudicial to the interest of the
employee.

As the Scheme would entail further shares to be offered
to persons other than existing Members of the Company,
consent of the members is sought pursuant to the
provisions of section 62 (1) (b) and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per the requirement of Clause 6 of the SEBI SBEB and
Sweat Equity Regulations as and when applicable to the
Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company including their relatives are interested or
concerned in the resolution No. 14 and 15, except to the
extent of their shareholding entitlements, if any, under
the ESOP Scheme.

Your Directors recommend the Resolution set out in
Iltem No. 14 and 15 of the Notice for adoption by the
Shareholders as Special Resolution/s.

By order of the Board

Md. Iquebal Ahmad
Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

Date: 12t May 2022
Place: Noida
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DETAIL OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/CHANGE IN TERM AT THE ENSUING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of Securities Exchange Board of India.
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015)

MR. RAHUL GAUTAM
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00192999
Date of joining of the board 01/04/1996

Brief resume of the Director including nature of
expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Rahul Gautam, aged 69 years, is the Managing Director of
the Company. He has been associated with the Company since
1971 and as the Managing Director since 1t April, 1996. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in technology (chemical engineering)
from the Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur and a master's
degree in science (chemical engineering) from the Polytechnic
Institute of New York. He has over 46 years of experience in
the home comfort products and PU foam industry, and is the
Chairman Emeritus of the Indian Polyurethane Association.

Relationship of directors inter-se

Mr. Rahul Gautam is the husband of Ms Namita Gautam and
father of Mr. Tushaar Gautam

Number of shares held in the company

62,09,485

Directorship and Committee memberships held in
other companies

Divya Software Private Limited
Sleepwell Enterprises Private Limited
Rangoli Resorts Private Limited
Joyce Foam Pty Ltd.

1.
2
3
4
5. International Comfort Technologies Private Limited
6. Core Mouldings Private Limited

7. Staqo World Private Limited

8. Interplasp S.L.U (Spain)

9

International Foam Technologies Spain S.L.U.

MS NAMITA GAUTAM
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00190463
Date of joining of the board 14/11/2003

Brief resume of the Director including nature of
expertise in specific functional areas

Ms. Namita Gautam, aged 68 years, is a Whole-time Director of
the Company. She has been associated with the Sheela group for
the last 30 years and as a Whole-time Director of the Company
since 14" November, 2003. During her tenure, marketing and
projects departments of the Company. She currently heads our
CSRinitiative through “Sleepwell Foundation” and heads Special
Projects. She holds a bachelor's degree in law and a master's
degree in economics from Kanpur University. She has held
various positions with FICCI Ladies Organization, including as
its National Presidentin 2004- 05. She is also the chairperson of
the Institute Management Committee of Jija Bai ITl for Women
and is on the board of trustees of Indraprastha Educational
Trust, which runs the Indraprastha College for Women, Delhi.
She was a member of Special Task Force on skills, education
and entrepreneurship development formulated by ClI, Northern
Region for the fiscal 2015-16 and is the convenor of the Panel on
Skills Development, Cll Delhi, a member of the NZ Skill Council
and National Skill Council of Cll for 2016-17

Relationship of directors inter-se

Ms. Namita Gautam is the wife of Mr. Rahul Gautam and mother
of Mr Tushaar Gautam

Number of shares held in the company

57,15,879

Directorship and Committee memberships held in
other companies

1. Rangoli Resorts Private Limited
2. Core Mouldings Private Limited
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MR. RAKESH CHAHAR

Director Identification Number (DIN)

00180587

Date of joining of the board

14/11/2003

Brief resume of the Director including nature of
expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Rakesh Chahar, aged 57 years, is a Whole-time Director of
the Company. He has been associated with the Company since
15t November, 1990 and as the Whole-time director since 14"
November, 2003. He is currently the chairman of the Indian
Sleep Products Federation. He has over 31 years of experience
in the business of selling and marketing of bedding products
and polyurethane foam.

Relationship of directors inter-se None
Number of shares held in the company None
Directorship and Committee memberships held in N

. one
other companies
MR. TUSHAAR GAUTAM
Director Identification Number (DIN) 01646487
Date of joining of the board 01/04/2007

Brief resume of the Director including nature of
expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Tushaar Gautam, aged 43 years, is a Whole-time Director of
the Company. He has been associated with our Company since
7t January, 2002 and as a Whole-time Director since 1t April,
2007. He holds a bachelor's degree from Purdue University,
USA, where his courses of study included financial, marketing
and operations management. In May 2005, he was recognized
by the President’s Council of Purdue University for pursuit of
excellence. He heads operations of the Company and also
oversees the business and operations of our subsidiary Joyce
Foam Pty Ltd and is a director on its board of directors. He has
over 19 years of experience in heading production, research
and development.

Relationship of directors inter-se

Mr Tushaar Guatam is the son of Mr Rahul Gautam and Ms
Namita Gautam

Number of shares held in the company

1,70,86,314

Directorship and Committee memberships held in
other companies

1. Divya software Priavte Limited

Sleepwell Enterprises Priavte Limited

Rangoli Resorts Private Limited

Joyce Foam Pty Ltd.

International Comfort Technologies Private Limited
Staqo World Private Limited

Interplasp S.L.U (Spain)

International Foam Technologies Spain S.L.U.
Staqo World KFT (Hungry)

0PN UA W N
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MR. SOM MITTAL
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00074842
Date of joining of the board 07/06/2016

Brief resume of the Director including
nature of expertise in specific
functional areas

Mr. Som Mittal, aged 70 years, is holding a bachelor’s degree in metallurgical
engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur, and a post graduate
diplomain business administration from the Indian Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad. In the past, he was associated with Larsen & Toubro, Escorts
and Denso and held leadership roles in Digital, HP and Compaq. He was also
the Chairman of National Association of Software and Services Companies
(NASSCOM).He has won the lifetime achievement award for outstanding
dedication to the growth of the Global ICT industry and leadership from the
World Information Technology and Services Alliance and a distinguished
alumnus award from the Indian Institute of Technology Kanpur in 2000.
Additionally, he has also served as a member of the Indian Prime Minister's
Committee on National e-Governance and the Global Advisory Council of
the World Information Technology and Services Alliance. He has several
years of experience in manufacturing and information technology sectors.

Relationship of directors inter-se

None

Number of shares held in the company None
Directorship and Committee Directorship Committee
memberships held in other companies 1. Apollo Hospitals Enterprise
Limited -
2. Tata Sia Airlines Limited 1.  Audit Committee

2.  Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

1.  Nomination and Governance
Committee

2. Compensation Committee

3. Exl Services holdings Inc. (Usa)

4. \odafone India Services Private

Limited -
MR. ANIL TANDON
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00089404
Date of joining of the board 07/06/2016

Brief resume of the Director including
nature of expertise in specific
functional areas

Mr. Anil Tandon aged 69 years, is holding a bachelor's degree of technology in
electrical engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur and a post
graduate diploma in management from the Indian Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad. Since 1995, he has been the Managing Director of Tex Corp
Limited which a leading organization in the field of fastening products. He
has several years of national and international experience in the zip fastening
products sector. He is an active member of the Board and is holding the
Chairman position of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the
Company. During his tenure, the company has got immense benefit of his
expertise and knowledge.

Relationship of directors inter-se None
Number of shares held in the company None
Directorship and Committee Directorship Committee
memberships held in other companies 1) Shibumi Accessories Pvt. Ltd. i
2) Tex Corp Private Limited Corporfate Social  Responsibility
Committee
3) Anvi Management Consultants
Private Limited
4) Shibhumi Ventures Limited -
5) Tex Zippers (Bd) Limited -
6) Tex Vietam Co Ltd -

Notice | 25
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LT GEN (DR.) V. K. AHLUWALIA

Director Identification Number (DIN)

08078092

Date of joining of the board

05/03/2018

Brief resume of the Director including nature of expertise
in specific functional areas

Lt Gen (Dr.) Vijay Kumar Ahluwaliaaged 70 years is holding
a master's degree in "Defence Studies and Management”
from Madras University, M. Phil in Defence Studies from
Indore University and PhD in Management (Internal
Security and Conflict Resolution) from Amity University,
Noida. He has several years of experience in Defence
Services. He served as a Judge of Armed Force Tribunal.
He also served as Director General of Raffles Group of
Institutions, Raffles University, Neemrana, Rajasthan.
He is a good contributor to the Board and is holding the
Chairman position of the Risk Management Committee
of the Company. During his tenure, the company has got
immense benefit of his expertise and knowledge.

Relationship of directors inter-se None
Number of shares held in the company None
Directorship and Committee memberships held in other None
companies

MS. MEENA JAGTIANI

Director Identification Number (DIN) 08396893
Date of joining of the board 08/04/2019

Brief resume of the Director including nature of expertise
in specific functional areas

Ms. Meena Jagtiani, aged 56 year is an MBA from
the symbiosis institute of business management.
She has done an executive development programme from
wharton Business School, University of Pennsylvania and
she is working as an Independent HR Advisor.

She has three decades rich industry experience in the field
of HR. She served in various corporate such as Aditya Birla
Group, Daksh e-services private limited and Korn/Ferry
International (the world's leading search firm) etc. She is
a good contributor to the Board and during her current
tenure she has contributed and advised to the Company
on various matters.

Relationship of directors inter-se

None

Number of shares held in the company

None

Directorship and Committee memberships held in other
companies

A. Morton Foods Limited

B. Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

26 I Sheela Foam Limited
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed
forward-looking information to enable
investors to comprehend our prospects and
take informed investment decisions. This
report and other statements - written and oral
- that we periodically make, contain forward-
looking statements that set out anticipated
results based on the management’s plans
and assumptions. We have tried wherever
possible to identify such statements by using
words such as ‘anticipate’, 'estimate’, 'expects),
‘projects, ‘intends| ‘plans ‘believes, and
words of similar substance in connection with
any discussion of future performance. We
cannot guarantee that these forward-looking
statements will be realised, although we
believe we have been prudent in assumptions.
The achievement of results is subject to
risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown
risks or uncertainties materialise or should
underlying assumptions prove inaccurate,
actual results could vary materially from those
anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers
should bear this in mind. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.

S
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To read this report online or to download, please visit
us at: http://sheelafoam.com/annual-report.html
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From humble beginnings to attaining market
leadership, our journey spanning five decades
has been a remarkable tale of providing utmost
comfort and support to our customers through
premium quality; thoughtful innovation, and
superior technology.

‘i
a

For 50 years, we have been crafting the most
significant innovations in the mattress and home
furnishing industry to shape a healthy future for

all. Sleepwell, our flagship brand, is India's most
trusted brand and is synonymous with ultimate rest
and comfort for every individual. Over the years,
we have evolved into a trusted and multinational
brand with a network of manufacturing facilities
and a robust distribution system.

Our belief that rest is not a privilege but a
necessity for good health has inspired us to launch
pioneering solutions that have elevated people's
lifestyles. As the pandemic unfolded, it reshaped
how people lived and worked. Almost overnight,
people’s immediate concerns - health, hygiene,
and immunity became a priority. We, at Sheela
Foam, have achieved the perfect blend of comfort
technology with a scientific health booster, helping
consumers safeguard their health and stay fitter.
We have mastered the skills and technology for
absolute comfort and convenience.




About Us

With its state-
of-the-art
technology,
Sheela Foam,
an ISO 9001
certified
company, is
committed to
transforming
people's
experience of
health, hygiene,
and comfort to
improve their
lifestyles.

02 I Sheela Foam Limited

Established in 1971, Sheela Foam is the pioneer in the mattress and foam
industry with a wide range of offerings in home comfort, technical foam,
and institutional foam range. Certified with avant-garde technology and
pioneering innovations, we manufacture products that meet our customers’
discerning needs and give them absolute comfort, satisfaction, and well-
being and are instrumental in their overall development.

An inspiring leadership; multifaceted product portfolio; state-of-the-art
manufacturing; worldwide network spanning India, Australia, Europe,
Africa, and America; a broad distribution network, and intense research and
development underpin our operations. Moreover, we enjoy a solid presence
in Australia and Spain through our wholly-owned subsidiaries. From leading
brand Sleepwell which offers thoughtful customisation to spearheading
Neem Fresche - the health-boosting technology that ensures our products
are germ-free, we are passionately motivated by development and are
impeccably positioned to enhance comfort.

The rising consciousness around the value of comfort and rest to preserve
good health has played to our advantage. Portfolio diversification in adjoining
categories and higher engagement through digital channels have been
instrumental in market share growth. We continuously endeavour to satisfy
and provide soulful rest to our customers and serve as accomplices in their
development journey.

Visiong
Mission

We will continue the legacy of being recognised as a
leader in premium comfort products.

We will always reinforce our core values of integrity,
reliability, pro-activity and transparency.

Every customer will be served with a smile.

We will remain committed to society.




v

QUALITY POLICY

We are committed to provide
complete customer satisfaction
through continual improvement by
consistent adherence to our quality
system and standards.

GROUP COMPANIES

v
Joyce Foam, Australia

A 100% subsidiary of the

Sheela Foam, Joyce Foam is a
leading manufacturer of flexible
polyurethane foam with around
40% market share in Australia. It has
state-of-the-art production centres
at Adelaide, Canberra, Melbourne,
Perth, and Sydney with a total
installed capacity of 10,500 TPA of
foam manufacturing.

Interplasp S.L., Spain

Interplasp S.L., a subsidiary of

the Sheela Foam, is backed by

30 years of operations and has a
capacity to produce 22,000 tonnes
of polyurethane foam. It has a
modernised manufacturing facility at
Yecla in Spain, one of the most cost-
effective manufacturing locations

in Europe, enabling us to enjoy

a competitive edge and develop
strong footprint in the region.

& SheelaFoam
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Great Pl;

Clj:rjiﬁod

This is to certify that Sheela Foam Limited has
the by
ace to Work® Institute, India, and is certified as a great workplace.

This certificate is valid from Mar 2022 to Mar 2023.




BUSINESS STRENGTHS

Market
Leadership

Sleepwell, our leading brand in
mattress and home comfort

range, has gathered an omni-
channel presence and a solid brand
positioning through its predominant
quality, customised approach, and
astute advancements comprising
Comfort Cells, Customised Pillow,
and Neem Fresche.

Manufacturing
Prowess

Our 10 state-of-the-art
manufacturing units across India, 5
generation centres in Australia, and
1in Spain help us deliver consistent,
competitive, profitable, and
responsible growth.

Global
Network

With 2,800 workers, 10 manufacturing

units, a network of more than 100
Distributors and more than 13,000
dealers in India, and export relations
with 25 nations, we have built up a
solid global presence and long-term
relationships with our clients.

Technical
Prowess

@c‘é;

Powered by purpose and innovation,
our expert group of foamers engage
in seamless manufacturing of high-
quality foam, thus ensuring standard
quality circles that influences
category leadership.

Product
@ Development/
% Research and
Development

Our highly skilled R&D team ensures
operational excellence by adapting
to the latest technical advancements
and producing differentiated
products and solutions.

& SheelaFoam

Innovation
Capabilities

With the differentiated science
and technology of Neem Fresche
that uses the disinfecting control
of neem to assist our clients in
remaining healthier and fitter
with the mechanical application
of inventive PU Foam, we offer
an exhaustive run of imaginative,
mechanically progressed items to
improve the existing standard.

Customer
Centricity

Our committed customer care team
aims to provide superior-quality
products and purposeful brands to
fulfil customer needs; apprise them
of the most recent innovation and
benefits; and directly engage with
them through proper aftersales
support and enhance their quality
of lives.

Annual Report 2021-22 I 05
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50 Years of our Glorious Journey

@ © © ©

Sheela Foam Limited’s Taking a India's economic Brand Sleepwell was
journey begins from step ahead, liberalisation in launched.
Sahibabad, Uttar operations were 1991 prompted the
Pradesh, extended to Company'’s expansion
founded by the Noida, in the plans.
chairperson emeritus National Capital
Mrs. Sheela Gautam. Region.

1998

India’s largest PU Went into tie-ups The Company Two more plants
(polyurethane) foam with Serta, USA, introduced rubberised started operations in
producing plant started and Dunlopillo, UK, coir products under the Silvassa near Mumbai,
operations in Greater to manufacture brand name Starlite. and in Hyderabad, then
Noida. mattresses. in undivided Andhra
Pradesh.

The Company spread Another manufacturing Ready to spread Sheela Foam Limited
its operations to north unit of the Company beyond national won the prestigious
India and started was set up in Sikkim. boundaries, the ClO 100 Award.

a plant in Rajpura, Company acquired
Punjab. the polyurethane and

polystyrene business
of Joyce, Australia.

06 I Sheela Foam Limited



2008

Won the Nasscom
CNBC-TV18 IT user
award; and changed
the face of mattress
retail with the launch
of its exclusive stores,
Sleepwell Worlds and
Galleries.

Awarded by PU Tech for
Innovative Technology
for Vertical Variable
Pressure Foaming.

More awards were won
by the Company. The
included Star SME of the
Year by Business Standard;
Silver medal in the India
Green Manufacturing
Challenge 2017, presented
by the International
Research Institute for
Manufacturing, India; 5
Awards for Excellence in IT.

Won several awards:
Information Week ‘Silver
Edge’ Award; CIO Green
Edge Special Award; CIO
Asia Award; and the CIO

100 Award for the 2nd
time. The Company also
launched revolutionary
technologies with

products like Impressions,

Latex Plus, Resitec Air,
Duet Luxury, Durafirm,
Serenity and Amity.

Received the Computer

World Premier Award.

Company got listed on

NSE and BSE.

Footprint in Europe,

the Company acquired
Interplasp S.L. in Spain

& SheelaFoam

Received the

prestigious Red Hat
Asia Pacific Award
and Indian Express
Intelligent Enterprise
Award. Also won the
MIS Asia IT Excellence
Award, one of Asia’s
top information
technology awards.

More prestigious
awards were received

by the Company, such

as the CIO 100 - Hall
of Fame; Information
Week Silver Edge

Award; and the CIO 100

Award once again.

Set up a new Subsidiary
called as International
Comfort Technologies

Private Limited
and commenced

construction for a new
plant under it at Maneri

Industrial Area near
Jabalpur, MP.

Continued to win
honours, such as the
SKOCH Digital Inclusion
Award; Dataquest
Innovator Award; CIO
Innovative - Special
Award; Information Week
Silver Edge Award; and
the CIO 100 Award yet
again. In the same year,
the Company started a
state-of-the-art unit in
Erode, Tamil Nadu, to
cater to southern India.

MBIAIBAQ 21el0dioD)

The Company
expanded production
capacities at Kala Amb
in Himachal Pradesh to
cater to the markets of

northern India.
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Performance Scorecard

EBITDA e e o o Absolute (% in Crore) —@— Margins (%)
2017 ecec0000000000000 195.2 1.2
2018 e0o0000000000000000 216.3 11.0
2019 e0o0o00000000000000 211 99
200 e0o00000000000000000000000 300.4 13.8
2021 000000000000000000000000000000 362.3 14.9
2022 00000000000000000000000000 314.9 10.6
PAT e e o o Absolute (% in Crore) —@— Margins (%)
2017 e0o0eeececcccccce 124.8 7.1
2018 e0o0e00000000cccoe 133.7 6.8
2019 e0o00ee00000000000 133.7 6.2
200 e00000000000000000000000 194.3 8.9
2021 000000000000000000000000000000 240.15 9.9
2022 000000000000000000000000000 219 7.3

NET WORTH

® e 00 Absolute (X in Crore) —@— Margins (%)

2017 ee00000000

2018 e000000000000

2019 e0o0o000e0000000000

2000 e0000000000000000000

2021 ecoco0000000000000000000000

2022 000000000000000000000000000000

EARNINGS PER SHARE

463.4
597.3
730.1
919.7

1,184.3
1,392.6

e e 00 Absolute )

20177 ee0ec00000000000

2018 e0000000000000000

2019 e0o0e00000000000000

2000 e00000000000000000000000

2021 ec0oco000000000000000000000000000

2022 0000000000000 00000000000000
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25.6
27.4
27.4
39.8
49.2
44.8

269
22.4
18.3
211
219
15.5
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SEGMENT-WISE
BREAK-UP KEY FIGURES

?3,061 Crore

Consolidated Revenue

(@

©® 15% European Operations

® 15% Australian Operations

® 70% Indian Operations

sreaKcur 1% 7 10% '

OPERATIONS e Cmh AR 205 EBITDA Growth CAGR 2017-22

syloday Aloinyers

13% | 24%

PAT Growth CAGR 2017-22 Net Worth Growth CAGR 2017-22

® 21% Technical Foam

® 79% Home Comfort Line

well

P
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50 Years of

Providing Absolute
Comfort and Rest

The pandemic has brought to the fore the importance of preventative care and the role
sleep plays in health and immunity-building. With consumers taking better charge of
their well-being, a good night’s rest is finally gaining prominence. The pandemic has
made way for a more product-savvy, quality-conscious consumer who is willing to
research, compare product material and technology, and make informed decisions.

With our innovative products

and technologies, we have been
delivering ultimate comfort and
sound sleep for accelerated growth.
Whether at work, resting, sleeping,
or on-the-go, our solutions are
designed to provide high-quality rest
to every individual. Our products

are conceptualised, designed,
and manufactured with extensive
research and rigorous quality

control. At the same time, we also
offer solutions for the economy
segment where consumers desire
innovative and comfortable products
at the most competitive prices
through our Starlite and Feather
Foam mattress range.

Sleepwell is one of the most beloved
brands in India with its premium
quality, customisation options, and

the unique proposition of science-
led innovation. Fortified with
advanced Neem Fresche technology
that promotes health and hygiene,
Sleepwell is a brand that stands
apart not only in the domestic
market but in the international
markets as well.




& SheelaFoam

OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Home

Technical
Comfort

Foam

- My Mattress « Spring Range

« Technology Range « Custom » Automotive Foams « « Furniture Cushions - Pillows
Cell Range « Back Support Reticulated Foams - Ultra- « Bedsheets - Comforters/
Range - Flexi PUF Range Violet Stable Foams Blankets + Mattress Protectors
- Showroom Range - Economy - Silentech Foams - Sofa-cum-Beds

Range + SleepX Online Brand

HOME COMFORT PRODUCTS

roduct | Productines

My Mattress, Spring Range, Technology Range, Back Support Range, Flexi
PUF Range, Showroom Range

MBIAIBAQ 31eli0dioD)

Mattresses

Furniture -

.. . Sleepwell Resitec, Sleepwell Cool Gel, Primo, Feather Foam
cushioning material

Pillow Fibre Range, Flexi PUF Range, Premium Range

syloday Aloinyers

Bolsters cushion -

Sofa-cum-beds Sofa and Bed

Other products Comfort range accessories, Foam Cores
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TECHNICAL FOAM PRODUCTS

m Product Lines End-use Industries

Poly-ester foam, Seat cover, Sound absorption systems, Sun
Poly-ether foam visors, Headliners, Door trims, Lamination systems

Automotive foams

Filtration systems, Ceramic foam filters,
Outdoor furniture, Microphones and headphones, Safety fuel
tanks, Ink cartridges

Ester-based foam,

Reticulated foam Ether-based foam

Sportswear, Innerwear and lingerie, Clothing, Swimwear,

Ultra Violet Stable foam ,
Comfort accessories for shoes

Automotive, Diesel generator canopies, Theatres,

Ester-based PU foam  auditoriums, indoor stadiums, Broadcasting rooms and
recording studios, Industrial silencers, Acoustic enclosures,
Engine testing rooms

Slientech foam

Annual Report 2021-22 I 11



50 Years o

Constant Innovation
and Growth

Innovation and technology are pivotal to all facets of businesses worldwide. In recent
times, innovative and interesting sleep technologies have gained traction and are
associated with direct health benefits. We constantly endeavour to leverage advanced
technologies to produce superior products and solutions for the overall well-being and
growth of consumers.

OUR PATH-BREAKING INNOVATIONS

Neem Fresche, an environment-
friendly, germ-free technology uses
the proven disinfecting properties of
neem to protect against dust mites,
and skin and breathing disorders.
Certified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency,
this technology is offered for the
entire Sleepwell home-comfort
range. Neem Fresche brings the best
of nature and science for a bespoke
sleep experience and good health

of every individual. This technology
withstands multiple cleaning cycles
and remains effective for years.

Other innovations include Comfort
Cell Mattress designed with
Integrated Core Technology for
proper support and sound sleep; My
Pillow with a range of customised
pillows with High-Rise or Low-

Rise options; Zero Turn Mattress
to reduce the need to turn the
mattress periodically to prevent
sagging issues; and Responsive
Memory Foam to accommodate to
the resting needs to increase the
comfort quotient of consumers.

One of our most significant
innovations includes Bed-in-a-box
from our Spain plant. This is a new
opportunity in the US as the country
imposes trade restrictions on other

12 I Sheela Foam Limited

countries. The product saves both on
middle-channel and transportation
costs and is a valuable addition to
our offerings. We have also started
exporting spring mattresses to the
US from India.

We also provide our customers with
an opportunity to design their own
furniture through virtual technology
and elevate their living spaces. Beds,
Bedside Tables, Sofa Sets, and corner
elements of mid-price segments with
the best quality and brand warranty
are among our other offerings.




EDUCATING CONSUMERS THROUGH
WEBINAR ON SLEEP THROUGH SLEEPX

As providers of high-quality sleeping
solutions, we aim to educate
consumers about the importance of
quality sleep and rest for improved
productivity and growth.

Through SleepX, we organse
webinar where sleep expert address
the audience to increase awareness

about the significance of sleep,
sleep disorders, and methods to
promote healthy sleeping habits.

It is a community of people joining
hands to provide assistance, uplift
each other, and encourage rest for
growth. Sleep Talk, Your Sleep Story,
and Sleep Expert are among the key
initiatives.

& SheelaFoam
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Chairman's Message

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure and pride that

| present this Annual Report as
Sheela Foam has completed
50 years of operations.

Our five-decade growth is an
inspiring journey of turning
challenges into opportunities and
setbacks into success. Our evolution
from a humble start-up to one of the
leading mattress manufacturers in
the world, through the flagship sleep
solution brand Sleepwell, can largely
be attributed to the core values and
guiding principles of Sheela Foam.

As the world economy was gradually
putting the COVID-19 pandemic
behind with the lifting of restrictions
and recovery in economic activities
and consumer sentiments, another
shock struck. The Russia-Ukraine
conflict has become a humanitarian
crisis and set back the economic
recovery. Commodity prices remain
volatile at elevated levels, and supply
chain disruptions have worsened.
Inflation pressures have heightened
across geographies, and central
banks are aggressively tightening
liquidity conditions.

Notwithstanding the prevailing
uncertainties, the fundamentals of
the Indian economy remain strong.
Barring the short-term challenges
such as increase in fuel and freight
costs, container shortage, and
logistical constraints, the long-term
outlook seems promising. Thrust
on infrastructure development,
improvement in the rural
economy, greater focus on policy

14 I Sheela Foam Limited

implementation, and growth in
real estate and railways will
accelerate economic recovery
and boost demand.

Our robust operations, technical
competence, and solid brand
reputation place us on a high growth
trajectory. We continue to embark
on innovation, superior design, and
high-quality products that personify
excellence. Our core strength of
research-led innovation provides an
unmatched value proposition for
consumers in both premium and
economy segments. We are also
benefiting from changing consumer
preferences towards high-quality,
branded household products as they
have become more conscious about
their health and hygiene. Consumers
perceive home comfort products as
a necessity and are willing to invest
in ones that guarantee enhanced
comfort and sleep along with right
quality. The new work-from-home
culture has also prompted a shiftin
consumer behaviour as they spent
more hours at home and demand

a soothing environment and finest
wellness products.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Our net revenue from operations in
FY 2021-22 on a consolidated basis
increased to ¥ 3,061 crore from

¥ 2,487 crore in FY 2020-21 registering
a growth of 23%. Consolidated net

profit after tax decreased to X 219 crore
from X 240 crore in the previous year
due to increased cost of raw material
across the globe. On a standalone
basis, net revenue from operations
stood at ¥ 2,195 crore as against
%1,741 crore in FY 2020-21 registering
a growth of 26%. Profit after tax for
the year increased to ¥ 197 crore

from X 181 crore in the previous fiscal,
registering a growth of 9%.

Net revenue from operations from
Australia in FY 2021-22 decreased to
AUD 77.56 million from AUD 81.08
million in FY 2020-21. Net profit
after tax decreased to AUD 2.66
million from AUD 4.84 million in the
previous year. The net revenue from
operations from Spain increased to
Euro 51.18 million in FY 2021-22 from
Euro 39.75 million in FY 2020-21,
while net profit decreased to Euro
2.19 million from Euro 4.09 million in
the previous fiscal due to increased
cost of raw material.

All our subsidiaries continue to do
well. Australia, which was impacted
in the first half of the year, has made
a strong recovery with relaxations

in restrictions and opening up of
economic activities. As far as Spain
is concerned, it has always remained
strong and offers multiple growth
opportunities with little impact of
COVID-19 pandemic on the country
and its people.



As you all are aware that we have new
projects lined up across all the three
geographies - India, Australia, and
Spain. We have a large project coming
up in Jabalpur, Madhya Pradesh
through our wholly-owned subsidiary
International Comfort Technologies
Private Limited. We intend to
manufacture mattresses and pillows
for all the segments of the society
including underserved markets of Tier
llland IV cities. Production of this unit
is expected to commence by the

end of 2022.

This facility is expected to be a
game-changer in the modern
mattress industry. Firstly, because
of the market that intends to

cater to, and secondly, because

the technology that has never

been used in India before. Itis a
revolutionary and unique technology
which will facilitate both affordability
and availability.

We have a new upcoming plant

in Adelaide. This is the second
foaming unit with newer and modern
technologies and is expected to
commence production in October
2022. There is also a substantial
expansion planned in Spain which

is expected to come on stream

in January 2023. As it had been
mentioned earlier, our Company in
Spain is a very small part of the largest
foam market and with the proposed
capacity expansion, it will steadily
achieve higher revenue and profits.

Our exports are scaling up as we
continue to market and sell higher
volumes of technical foam and
mattress. Company is addressing
the issue of freight which is a
cause of concern nowadays due
to pandemic and Ukraine war. We
continue to drive sales of PE Foam
products on account of increasing
customer preferences. This will
also help us retain our comfort
foam customers.

The pandemic has made people
wary of stepping out of their
homes and has given a huge fillip
to e-commerce. Modern mattress
players are shaping new strategies
to help consumers buy mattresses
from the comfort of their homes.
Our e-commerce business has
progressed well and registered

the revenue of ¥ 85 crore and a
growth of 55% over the previous
year. Innovative products such as
Personal Protector coupled with the
regionalisation of communication
will further boost growth. SleepX,
our e-commerce mattress brand,
banks on the solid reputation and
promise of Sleepwell. SleepXis
bound to ride the e-commerce and
online retail boom and take the
organisation to newer heights.

Going forward, despite the macro-
economic disruptions, our outlook
on the furniture and mattress
industry remains quite strong owing
to the favourable demographics,
rising affluence in the Indian
population, and growth in end-

user industries such as housing,
automobile, hospitality, and
healthcare. Per capita consumption
of foam is quite low compared to
other markets which provides ample
headroom for growth.

Our six-point strategy will be to
differentiate the brand and elevate
the comfort quotient for our
consumers; follow a segmented
approach to tap into white segments
in the market and support growth;
regionalise communication to
strengthen consumer connect;
digitise platforms to generate
higher engagement and business;
improve consumer experience

with enhanced in-store service and
better conversions and build a wide
spectrum of solutions to increase
consumer connect and growth.

& SheelaFoam

Our key drivers for growth in the
coming year will be focussed on our
core brands. Capacity expansion in the
international businesses will unfold
and the opportunity for mergers and
acquisitions is something that we
continue to explore.

We are building an organisation
which is future-fit and purpose-
driven as we enhance our

focus and strive to integrate

the environmental, social, and
governance (ESG) parameters in the
business. In the future, ESG will form
the backbone and cornerstone of
operations at Sheela Foam.

My sincere appreciation to our
shareholders, partners, customers,
suppliers, and employees for their
unstinted trust and support in

us. We remain positive about the
market sentiments and are putting
our best foot forward to capitalise
on the opportunities that lie ahead
and drive growth. As we embark on
the next era of our journey, our rich
legacy will continue to inspire us to
deliver greater value for all.

Regards.

Rahul Gautam

Chairman & Managing Director,
Sheela Foam Limited
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Board of Directors

Chairman & Managing Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 1971 and has been
our Managing Director since

1 April 1996. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Technology - Chemical
Engineering from the Indian
Institute of Technology, Kanpur,
and a Master's degree in Science

- Chemical Engineering from the
Polytechnic Institute of New York.
He has over 45 years of experience
in the home comfort products

and PU foam industry and is the
Chairman Emeritus of the Indian
Polyurethane Association.
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Whole-Time Director

She has been associated with our
Group for the past 33 years and been a
Whole-Time Director of our Company
since 14 November 2003. During her
tenure, she has headed the Human
Resource, Marketing, and Projects
departments of the Company. She
currently leads our CSR initiative
through the Sleepwell Foundation
and heads Special Projects. She holds
a bachelor's degree in Law and a
master's degree in Economics from
Kanpur University.

©

Whole-Time Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 1 November 1990

and been a Whole-Time Director since
14 November 2003. He has more
than 30 years of experience in the
business of selling and marketing of
bedding products and polyurethane
foam. He heads the Sales and
Marketing function.

& SheelaFoam

Whole-Time Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 7 January 2002 and
been a Whole-Time Director since

1 April 2007. He is elevated to the

CEQ of the Indian Operation since

1 February 2022. He holds a bachelor's
degree from Purdue University, USA,
where his courses of study included
Financial, Marketing, and Operations
Management. He oversees the
operations of the Company and our
subsidiary Joyce Foam Pty Ltd and
Interplasp Spain and serves on their
Board of Directors. He has more than
19 years of experience in heading
Production, Research and Development.

Independent Director

He has been associated with our
company since 7 June 2016. He is

a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. In the
past, he has held senior managerial
positions in various banking
organisations such as the Central Bank
of India and has been the Chairman
and Managing Director of Corporation
Bank and SIDBI. He has also served as
a Whole-time Member of SEBI from

6 June 2006 to 5 March 2008. He has
several years of experience in the
banking and finance sector and vast
knowledge of financial matters.

o

Independent Director

He has been associated with the
Company since 7 June 2016. He holds
a bachelor's degree in Metallurgical
Engineering from the Indian Institute
of Technology, Kanpur, and a post-
graduate diploma in Business
Administration from the Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.
He has several years of experience

in manufacturing and information
technology sectors.

Independent Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 7 June 2016. He
holds a bachelor's degree in Chemical
Engineering from the Indian Institute
of Technology, Kanpur, and a post
graduate diploma in Management
from the Indian Institute of
Management, Calcutta. He was the
Group CEO of Bennett & Coleman,
India's largest media company. He has
vast experience in the fields of Sales
and Marketing Management.

Independent Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 5 March 2018. He is
holding a master's degree in Defence
Studies and Management from Madras
University, M. Phil in Defence Studies
from Indore University and PhD in
Management - Internal Security

and Conflict Resolution from Amity
University, Noida. He has several years
of experience in Defence Services. He
also served as a Judge of Armed Force
Tribunal and as Director-General of
Raffles Group of Institutions, Raffles
University, Neemrana, Rajasthan.

Independent Director

He has been associated with our
Company since 7 June 2016. He

is holding a bachelor's degree of
Technology in Electrical Engineering
from the Indian Institute of
Technology, Kanpur and a Post-
graduate Diploma in Management
from the Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad. Since
1995, he has been the Managing
Director of Tex Corp Pvt Ltd, a leading
organisation in the field of fastening
products. He has several years of
national and international experience
in the zip fastening products sector.

o

Independent Director

She is an MBA from the Symbiosis
Institute of Business Management and
has done an Executive Development
Programme from Wharton Business
School, University of Pennsylvania.
At present, she is working as an
independent HR advisor. She has
three decades of rich industry
experience in the field of HR. She
served in various corporate houses
such as the Aditya Birla Group, Daksh
e-Services Private Limited, and Korn/
Ferry International - world's leading
search firm before taking her role as
an Independent Advisor.
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/e sleepwell.
CORPORATE 1Y Foundation
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY SHEELAGRODP Wake up to a New India

Annual Report 2021-22

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities of
Sheela Foam Limited are spearheaded by Sleepwell Foundation

Our Initiatives

EMOTIONAL WELLNESS SDC KHURJA SKILL DEVELOPMENT

SOCIAL CHANGE WITH
GREATER RESPONSE
GREATER PARTICIPATION
GREATER IMPACT

While the pandemic seems to be behind us, the path to recovery
* towards normalcy is slow as people continue to be greatly affected
* by its aftermath.

*

At Sleepwell Foundation, post-pandemic recovery has been central
to our every initiative to empower the marginalised and
underprivileged youth and women.

18 I Sheela Foam Limited



@ SheelaFoam

EMOTIONAL WELLNESS

We have reached
At Sleepwell Foundation, we leverage Social Media to 411.6 MILLION
enhance Emotional Wellness in the society by people with our films on
building awareness, actions on the ground, and Emotional Wellness, and
advocacy with various stakeholders. every day our viewership
is increasing.

Season 2

The second season of Baatein

Dil Ki came with more films

touching on diverse emotional

issues appropriate for the present

times. Our films have generated

tremendous impact among the

masses in enhancing their

emotional health literacy, reducing

self-stigma and improving

attitudes towards help-seeking. Impact: 10,29,810 Beneficiaries
Additional Views: 1,12,802 through Zindagi with Richa YouTube Channel

MBIAIBAQ S1ei0dioD)

Sleepwell Foundation Presents — — e m
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than 6.9 million views. More than 5,000 people
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liked the film. 88,23,078 2,10,90,967
BENEFICIARIES THROUGH ZINDAGI WITH
RICHA YOUTUBE CHANNEL
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20 EPISODES

Film series to guide and educate
school-going children and x o
teenagers in dealing with the -4 THROUGH ZINDAGI WITH RICHA

challenges that make them = YOUTUBE CHANNEL
vulnerable to risky situations. 3

\‘ UBSCRIBERS O
We have 1 ,O0,00 ouTube

# % /Sleepwellfoundation

OFFLINE COUNSELLING

ONE-TO-ONE
COUNSELLING AT
JUABAI'ITI FOR WOMEN,
NEW DELHI

Caring about the emotional issues of young

ITI women trainees, we have opened a
One-to-One Counselling service at the ITI.
Sessions are held every Tuesday where individual
counselling is conducted by a well-qualified and
trained counsellor.

Emotional Wellness
Workshop at Jijabai
ITI for Women,
New Delhi

Sleepwell Foundation conducted workshops
for the trainees to improve their emotional
wellbeing. Sessions on Perception and
Communication, Relationships, and enhancing
Emotional Wellness were conducted in which
almost the entire student community
participated.

Post lockdown and isolation, these workshops
brought fresh life to the

students by enhancing their overall

social and emotional connect.
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SDC ‘ Sleepwell Foundation
Skill Development Centre, Khurja

With profound and irreversible changes on the horizon for the post-pandemic world of work, we are preparing the rural youth
for the shift in skill demand.

We have added relevant and forward-looking courses that would reimagine jobs in the post-pandemic economy. It would help
the youth to get back to work in the short term, while addressing the greater issues of emotional wellness in the long run.

EXPANSION AT SDC, Khurja

SDC Block-2 Enhancing Infrastructure; Catering to growing demand
= . _'_,."_i"‘u-,l egf g =
gy 207

ke

570 SQ.M. BUILT-UP AREA
LIBRARY | 5 TRAINING ROOMS | RECEPTION | TOILET BLOCK | OFFICE

Paramedical Courses started

To meet the demand for medical professionals in rural areas, we have started short-term Paramedical courses at our newly
constructed SDC Block-2 Campus.

COURSES RUNNING AT
PRESENT: NURSING
ASSISTANT, EMERGENCY
MEDICAL TECHNICIAN,
AND PHLEBOTOMY.

WE HAVE TRAINED

AROUND 200 YOUTH
WHO ARE CURRENTLY
UNDERGOING INTERNSHIP
AT GOVERNMENT-RUN
HOSPITALS AND HEALTH
CENTRES IN AND
AROUND KHURJA.

The courses are affiliated with DPMI Vocational Institute; a premium institute
imparting quality paramedical health education for the last 25 years.
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Selling Skill Course initiated

We have started this course to increase the scope of
employment for thousands of youth as salesperson, especially
from rural areas.

The course is conducted by Mr. Rajul Chaturvedi, an acclaimed
coach and author of ‘The 7 Steps of an Effective Sales Call: An
F.M.C.G. Salesman's Bible.’

By teaching the basics of sales to these youth, we are
transforming them into efficient salespeople.

AROUND 50 YOUTH ENROLLED

MANY FOUND EMPLOYMENT WITH RENOWNED
COMPANIES

With the growing emphasis on SOFT SKILLS in shrinking job
market, we have conducted a month-long workshop for all the
trainees of SDC to reinforce these skillsets to them.

Sessions were held on Perception and Communication Skills,
Stress Management, Anger Management, Interview Skills,
Presentation Skills, Public Speaking, Group Discussion, Resume
Writing Skills, etc.

350 TRAINEES

ACROSS MULTIDISCIPLINE
BENEFITED FROM THESE WORKSHOPS

22 I Sheela Foam Limited

Col Gautam Academy
for Armed Forces

Preparatory Classes for
Admission in Sainik Schools

In our commitment to empowering rural children and youth for a
fulfilling life — SDC Khurja is holding preparatory classes for
entrance exam for Admission in Sainik Schools for Class 6.

Itis a year-long programme to coach children in Math, English,
General Science, and Social Studies. Assistance is also provided for
online form-filling and accustomising children for the online
examination.

25 STUDENTS ATTENDED THESE CLASSES
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2nd FASHION SHOW AT SDC KHURJA BY MASTERG TRAINEES

Marking the passing out
ceremony of the 2nd and
3rd Batch of MasterG
Fashion Designing Course
As a tradition of the discipline, a fashion show
was held where the passing-out graduates
modelled and walked the ramp showcasing

their creations. 35 Students participated in the
fashion show.

MasterG Fashion Designing Course is empowering women for financial
independence, gender equality, poverty eradication and inclusive
economic growth.

MBIAIBAQ 31eli0dioD)

Rozgar Mela 2 200 CANDIDATES GOT
. . ON-THE-SPOT JOBS.
Job Fair at SDC Khurja Y MORE e

SHORTLISTED.
GRAND SUCCESS — HUGE TURNOUT OF 600

In offering opportunities for livelihood to the rural youth —
Sleepwell Foundation, in partnership with Cll Model

Career Centre (Cll MCC) organised Rozgar Mela 2 at Sleepwell
Foundation Skill Development Centre, Khurja

on 25% February 2022.

syloday Aloinyers

21 Renowned companies from different sectors participated in
the Fair.

Free Medical Check-up Camp

On the occasion of Children’s Day, Sleepwell Foundation in
collaboration with Adharshila conducted the 2nd Free Medical
Camp at SDC Khurja on 12" November 2021.
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450 YOUNG PEOPLE GOT THEIR HEALTH CHECK-UP DONE

6th CSR Committee
Meeting of Sheela Foam
held at SDC Khurja

Directors and CSR Committee Members of Sheela Foam visited
SDC Khurja on 14th December 2021 to assess the Centre's
performance and also to draw future CSR strategies. Those
delegated from Sheela Foam were Mr. Anil Tandon, Ms. Meena
Jagtiani, Mr. Rahul Gautam, Mr. Rakesh Chahar, Mr. Ravi
Dhariwal, Lt Gen (Dr.) V.K. Ahluwalia and other Senior Managers.
They were highly impressed by what they saw at SDC and rated
the Centre very high.
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Skill Development

How to Start a Business

Workshop for Delhi Police
. 740 YOUTH BENEFITED
Yuva Trainees

In association with ClI, a 3-Day Hybrid Workshop (Online and
Physical) was held from 25% to 27" August 2021, exclusively for
YUVA Trainees at Delhi Police Headquarters, Jai Singh Road,
New Delhi. The workshop was aimed to benefit those youth
who get diverted to crime and in order to integrate them with
the mainstream.

The workshop was inaugurated by Shri Rakesh Asthana,
Commissioner, Delhi Police, Shri Balaji Srivastav, Special
Commissioner of Delhi Police and other senior officers from
Delhi Police and Confederation of Indian Industry (Cll). On the
closing day, Mr. Rahul Gautam, MD and Chairman, Sheela Foam
addressed the audience.

Train The Teachers
5-Day Online Workshop

Sleepwell Foundation conducted Workshops to enhance Soft &
Functional skills and Emotional Wellness of Teachers. Improved
professional skills of teachers will have maximum impact on the
learning outcome of the students, especially in the light of the
New Education Policy.

5 WORKSHOPS WERE HELD IN FY 2021-22 | 2,420 BENEFITED

How to Start a Business Enhance Your Professional

Online Workshops Effectiveness Online Workshops

In mentoring youth towards Self Employment — workshops In association with ClI, Sleepwell Foundation conducted
were conducted for those who have ideas but not the workshops for SME industry personnel, from semi-skilled to
know-how to set up their business. The workshops gave managerial level, training them on enhancing their personal
detailed guidance for getting started. and professional skills.

13 WORKSHOPS CONDUCTED 3,462 BENEFICIARIES 8 WORKSHOPS CONDUCTED 1,807 BENEFICIARIES

AR |
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COVID-19 Response by Sheela Foam

Navigating the crisis with resilience

We have incrementally stepped up our plan of action
against the pandemic since last year to respond as the
circumstances demanded.
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Mobility to Save Lives

Advanced Life Support Ambulance donated
to
Shaheed Bhagat Singh Seva Dal, Delhi.

Oxygen to Save Lives Donated Mattresses, Pillows and
Bedsheets to various COVID-care
hospitals and health centres
throughout India.

To make critical oxygen care accessible to patients, we donated a
PSA Medical Oxygen Gas Generation Plant to Mohanlal Gautam
District Female Hospital, Aligarh.

Free COVID-19 VACCINATED B2
Vaccination Drive <Gl Eﬁ?ﬁmﬁ
Sleapwell Foundation Skill Dew

at SDC, Khurja

In lending a hand in COVID-19
Vaccination efforts, we
organised 3 Vaccination Camps
at SDC, Khurja where 530 rural
people were inoculated.

RS, e Pl
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS GROUP CFO

Rahul Gautam Nikhil Datye

Namita Gautam

Rakesh Chahar

Tushaar Gautam COMPANY SECRETARY

Md Iquebal Ahmad
NON-EXECUTIVE

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
V K Chopra
Som Mittal AUDITORS

Ravindra Dhariwal MSKA & Associates

Anil Tandon
Lt Gen (Dr.) V K Ahluwalia
Meena Jagtiani

o000 0
BANKERS
Yes Bank Limited
Citi Bank
Kotak Mahindra Bank
o000 0
REGISTERED OFFICE
604 Ashadeep, 9 Hailey Road, New Delhi - 110001, India
Telephone - +91 11 22026875
o000 0
HEAD OFFICE
#14, Sector 135, Sleepwell Tower, Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh, India
E-mail - investorrelation@sheelafoam.com
o000 O0
REGISTRAR
OF THE COMPANY

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Noble Heights, First Floor, Plot NH2, C-1 Block LSC, Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri,
New Delhi - 110058

Telephone - +91 11 - 41410592, 93, 94
E-mail - delhi@linkintime.co.in

Website - www.linkintime.co.in
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Management Discussion & Analysis

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
Global Economy

The global economy was seen recovering in 2021 after
the high market volatility and deep recession in 2020.
However, the ongoing Russia-Ukraine crisis led to
extensive loss of lives, triggered the biggest refugee
crisis in Europe, and severely set back the global recovery.
After a strong rebound in 2021, the economic indicators
suggest that global activity has slowed. Global growth is
projected to decline from 6.1% in 2021 to 3.6% in 2022
and 2023. This comes just as the threat from the Omicron
variant appeared to be fading, with major economies of
the world moving past the acute phase of the pandemic.
At the end of 2021, inflation in several regions surged
to multi-decadal highs. A key driver of inflation across
the world has been the rapid surge in energy, food,
and commodity prices. However, a faster resolution of
the war in Ukraine and strong policy support would lift
confidence, ease pressure on commodity markets, and
reduce supply bottlenecks.

Growth across Advanced Economies (AEs) is expected
to moderate to 3.3% in 2022 from 5.2% clocked in 2021.
The US economic expansion has been facing headwinds
from surging inflation and gradual withdrawal of fiscal
and monetary policy support. The rebound that was
underway in Europe has suffered a setback due to the
Russia-Ukraine conflict with inflation at unpredictable
levels. Emerging Markets and Developing Economies
(EMDEs) are expected to grow at 3.8% as against 6.8%
growth recorded in 2021. Developments in China
continue to dominate the outlook for Asia, especially for
emerging Asia. The risk of new COVID-19 variants in China
has led to mobility restrictions and localised lockdowns,
which has slowed private consumption. Emerging and
Developing Europe, including Russia and Ukraine will
see GDP contract significantly owing to higher energy
prices and the disruption of trade. A few central banks
have started tightening their stances in the second half
of 2021 and others are expected to follow in response
to domestic macroeconomic conditions, including rising
inflationary pressures.

(Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2022)

Indian Economy

Following the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic,
India's economy was well on its way to recovery, with
both the manufacturing and service sectors exhibiting
consistent growth. However, the emergence of new
COVID variants, supply-chain disruptions arising
out of the Russia-Ukraine crisis, and, more recently,
weaker consumer demand owing to higher oil and food

prices have been posing fresh challenges to economic
development. As per IMF, India’s Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) is estimated to have grown by 8.9% in FY 2021-22,
and growth is expected at 8.2% in FY 2022-23, making
India the fastest-growing major economy in the world.

Thelndianeconomy is expected toremainresilient despite
the ongoing geopolitical conflicts, mainly due to the
economy’s inherent strengths, strong fundamentals, and
growth promising sectors. Growth will be supported by
various dynamic reforms undertaken by the government,
such as significant increase in capital expenditure on
infrastructure, thrust on domestic manufacturing and
technology-enabled development, and recovery in
consumer demand, among others.

(Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2022)

OUTLOOK

Huge government funding in public infrastructure,
announcement of newer and efficient Vande Bharat
trains, and higher allocation towards affordable housing
- are all expected to encourage growth and attract private
investments through a strong multiplier effect in the
industry. However, supply-side bottlenecks persist with
rising international crude oil prices and growing raw
material costs. On the monetary side, the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) continued with the accommodative monetary
stance by keeping key repo rate and reverse repo rate
unchanged at 4% and 3.35%, respectively to trigger
economic growth amidst rising inflation. The availability
of budgetary space to ramp up capital spending,
advantages from supply-side reforms, and continued
export growth will stimulate growth in FY 2022-23.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Health & Wellness Industry

India’s health and wellness industry is one of the fastest-
growing and has undergone a transformative journey
over the past year. With the pandemic underscoring
its importance, 2020 has been the year where health
and wellness have been increasingly prioritised by
people. Growing consumer awareness and an increased
inclination amongst citizens to adopt a healthier lifestyle
have paved the way for the industry to evolve rapidly.
The global pandemic has resulted in a shift in consumer
behaviour, where they are becoming more health-
conscious and striving towards regaining their health
and fitness.

Cutting-edge technologies have made their way into

every aspect of people's lives and health and wellness
segment is no exception. As more people gravitate
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towards a healthier lifestyle, activity trackers, step
counters and heart rate monitors, etc., have become
increasingly popular and enhanced the demand for
wearable technologies. On the well-being side, practices
such as mindfulness-based stress reduction, meditation,
yoga, etc. have gained prominence in recent years.
With the aggressive implementation of technology
and the constantly evolving consumer behaviour, the
wellness industry will evolve and expand further in the
coming years.

(Source: http://bwdisrupt.businessworld.in/article/
Revolutionizing-The-Health-And-Wellness-Sector-Trends-To-
Watch-Out-For-In-2021/08-02-2021-375180/)

Indian mattress industry

The Indian mattress market comprises PU Foam,
Rubberised Coir, and Spring Mattresses. Consumer-driven
factors such as increasing population, rising urbanisation,
and improvement in institutional infrastructure are the
key growth drivers for the growth of the mattress market.
Branded mattress players have seen an increasing market
share due to their constant efforts and investments to
increase consumer awareness about premium and quality
mattresses and development of retail infrastructure and
marketing activities.

The changing market dynamics due to the pandemic
and increased e-commerce adoption are expected to
further augment the growth of the mattress market. In
the year 2020, the mattress industry witnessed a steep
increase in sales, largely driven by consumer awareness
and inclination towards health & hygiene, government
investments for the betterment of health sector
infrastructure, and rising demand for new mattresses
from the real estate and hospitality segments. Meanwhile,
the introduction of omnichannel strategy by various
mattress companies is also expected to propel mattress
sales. Overall, the hospitality, healthcare and real estate
sectors, introduction of customised mattresses catering
to health-conscious customers, and greater offers and
discounts offered by mattress companies will boost the
growth of the industry.

Growth Enablers:

Growing demand for quality mattresses: Increasing
awareness among people about the benefits of right
quality mattresses for enhanced comfort and sleep is
augmenting the demand for premium products.

Booming online market: The pandemic has made
people wary of stepping out of their homes. This has
led to a boom in the e-commerce industry and brands
are developing new strategies to help consumers buy
mattresses from the comfort of their homes.

Increasing brand consciousness: Consumer preferences
are shifting towards innovative and branded mattresses
owing to increasing income levels, changing lifestyles,
and greater demand for housing and institutional sectors.
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Shift to the organised market: The mattress industry
has seen a clear shift from unorganised to the organised
players with the implementation of GST and formalisation
of the economy.

Shifting consumer choices:

Quality: In India, cotton mattresses have been the most
preferred sleeping solution for years. They are highly
susceptible to germs and dust mite attacks. Their low
quality and saggingissues require increased maintenance.

Comfort: Amarked shiftisseeninconsumers’ preferences
towards good quality mattresses that provide a high level
of comfort and quality sleep.

Changing preferences: Today, consumers are seen
increasingly demanding premium and high-quality
customised products in place of traditionally used
cotton mattresses.

Research: Modern mattresses are developed with
thorough research and advanced technology as per
diverse customer demands.

Technology: Advancement of technology has helped
in keeping the mattresses, fresh, durable, lightweight,
and breathable by using anti-bacterial treatments and
new foaming technology. This technology is enabling
manufacturers to produce a diverse range of modern and
personalised products.

Organised Mattress Market

The organised mattress market is classified into three
categories, PU Foam accounting for major market share
of 50%, Rubberised Coir constituting 30%, and Spring
Mattresses constituting 20%. The share of rubberised
coir mattress market is likely to fall owing to increasing
prices of rubber and inherent quality and sagging issues.
Consumers in India largely prefer PU Foam mattresses
as they are more durable, comfortable, and relatively
reasonable. Additionally, growth in end-user industries
such as bedding & furniture, electronics, automotive, and
building & construction, etc. is driving the growth of PU
Foam market. Demand for branded Spring mattresses
has also been on the rise due to increasing popularity
among consumers, evolving lifestyles, and preference
for mattresses with thickness and bounce and greater
comfort level.

Distribution Platforms

Organised mattress players use both offline and online
distribution channels to market and sell their products.
The offline market comprises sales through distributors/
dealers or own franchised stores. The distributor/dealer
network constitutes 88% of the market share, followed
by EBOs and online platforms.

The online mattress market is witnessing increasing
popularity in India largely due to ease, comfort,
competitive pricing options, faster delivery, and arange of



choices. Consumers today are more comfortable making
purchases online, which has created an opportunity for
players to transform the mattress buying experience.
Further, favourable demographics, rising young
workforce, and increasing reach of online platforms have
also been driving growth of the online market.

Indian Flexible PU Foam Industry

Flexible foams are used in various industries such as
construction, furniture & bedding, packaging, and
consumer goods. They are witnessing increased
popularity, as they significantly cut energy costs, thereby
making residential and commercial properties energy-
efficient and comfortable. Growth in Indian flexible foam
marketis being driven by rapidinfrastructure development
and expansion of the residential and commercial sectors.

The flexible PU Foam is manufactured as Slab Stock
Foam and Moulded Foam. Slab stock foam accounts
for nearly 65-70% of the market share. It is widely used
in industries like mattresses, furniture, and footwear,
among others. On the other hand, moulded foam
constitutes 30-35% of the organised market and is used
in the automotive industry.

Continuous technological advancements and penetration
of international infrastructure players also influence
the market positively. The furniture industry is a key
consumer of flexible foam, as it is used as a cushioning
material for upholstered furniture. Flexible polyurethane
foam makes furniture more durable and comfortable. The
rise in residential construction activities is expected to
fuel demand for bedding and furniture, which in turn, will
drive demand for PU foam.

(Source: https://www.alliedmarketresearch.com/flexible-foam-
market-A06643)

Opportunities and Threats
Opportunities

Growing consumerism: Consumer spending in India
is expected to grow into a USD 6 trillion opportunity by
2030. Growth in consumption will be supported by a 1.3
billion strong population that is younger than that of any
other major economy. Rapid urbanisation, increasing
incomes, and greater brand awareness will lead to a rise
in consumerism, which will drive demand for quality
mattresses and sleeping products.

Higher spending propensity: Increasing number of
working population has been leading to higher disposable
incomes and spending propensity towards luxury
and premium quality products. Demand for mattress
market has been growing because of rising incomes and
expansion of the middle class and high-income segments.

Increasing incidences of lifestyle diseases: Increasing
ailments due to long working hours and sedentary
lifestyles are propelling demand for products that add
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to overall comfort and well-being. This has been driving
demand for quality and differentiated sleeping solutions
that rejuvenates the body and improves productivity.

Adoption of technology: Sound and healthy sleep
have become the topmost priority for consumers.
Towards this, branded mattress players are leveraging
new technologies and innovating and producing sleep
solutions that come with enhanced quality and comfort.
Technology is also deployed to improve overall customer
service and satisfaction at every touchpoint.

Growth in end-user industries: Government initiatives
like Smart Cities, Housing for All, etc. along with
strong thrust on railways, hospitality, and construction
segments will favour industrial development and lead to
higher mattress consumption.

Challenges

Transportation and warehousing: The PU foam
and mattresses are very voluminous in nature;
therefore, it poses huge challenges for warehousing
and transportation of these products. It also involves
significant costs, making long-distance transportation
unviable.

Lack of consumer awareness: Lack of education and
consumer awareness about the benefits of good quality
mattresses created dominance of traditional mattresses
and other sleeping solutions in the market earlier.

Higher prices of raw materials: The ongoing geopolitical
tensions, supply chain issues, temporary shutdown
of global plants, and other factors have dramatically
increased the prices of key raw materials for foam viz.
Polyol and TDI. This has adversely impacted the mattress
and PU Foam market in India.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Established in 1971, Sheela Foam Limited is the flagship
company of Sheela Group and a leader in India's
mattress and foam products industry. The Company
has a diversified range of offerings in mattresses, home
comfort, and technical grades of PU foam products
along with a significant global footprint. A dynamic
management team; strong brand recall; state-of-the-art
manufacturing units; widespread distribution network
and pioneering research and development capabilities
underpin the operations of the Company.

The Company manufactures products of unmatched
quality as per evolving customer preferences to
provide them absolute comfort and convenience. A
dedicated and highly skilled team of engineers and
scientists form the backbone of the Company, enabling it
to produce differentiated and world-class products with
innovative technologies.
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Product Portfolio:

. Mattresses: My Mattress, Spring range, Technology
range, Comfort Cell range, Back support range, Flexi
PUF range, Economy

. Home Comfort Products: Furniture Cushions,
Pillows, Comforters/Duvets, Sofa-cum-Beds

o Technical Foam Products: Automotive foams,
Reticulated foams, Ultraviolet Stable foams, Sound
Absorption foams

Well-spread

distribution Wide

network

portfolio

Competitive
advantages

Dedicated
sales and
marketing
team

Versatile

management

Manufacturing Prowess

The Company has 16 manufacturing locations across
India, Australia, and Spain, engaged in the manufacture
of innovative products that provide the perfect blend
of comfort and support. As a revolutionary enterprise,
the Company has advanced capabilities of quality
manufacturing and technological developments.

Quality and innovative brands

The Company has animpeccable track record of producing
personalised and delightful products to resonate with
evolving customer needs. Sleepwell, the flagship brand
of the Company, has gained significant prominence over
the years and created a reputation for own. Other brands
of the Company include Feather Foam and Starlite, which
are low-priced mattresses for consumers. These brands
have enabled the Company to enhance its share in the
organised mattress market.

Technological innovations in Sleepwell

1. The Company is using variable pressure foaming
in its selected plant which is the most advanced
technology in the world and yields to better quality
products with reduced costs.

2. The Company uses variable pressure foaming

techniques to provide quality products to the
consumers.

30 | Sheela Foam Limited

Other initiatives

As on 31t March 2022, the Company has increased its
Exclusive Branded Outlets to more than 1,800.

It has also expanded its dealer network, taking the total
count to 13,323.

Online Sales

The Company has registered a significant growth of 55%
in its online brand SleepX in FY 2021-22 compared to the
previous year.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

During FY 2021-22, net revenue from operations on
standalone basis stood at ¥ 2,195 crore as compared to
% 1,741 crore in the previous year. Profit after tax for the
current year increased to ¥ 197 crore from % 181 crore in
FY 2020-21. Net revenue from operations from Australia
decreased to AUD 77.56 million from AUD 81.08 million.
The net profit after tax decreased to AUD 2.66 million from
AUD 4.84 million in FY 2020-21. The net revenue from
operations from Spain increased from Euro 39.75 million
to Euro 51.18 million. The net profit decreased from Euro
4.09 million to Euro 2.19 million. On consolidated basis,
net revenue from operations increased to ¥ 3,061 crore
from ¥ 2,487 crore in the previous year. Consolidated net
profit after tax decreased to ¥ 219 crore from % 240 crore
registered in FY 2020-21.

Key Financial Ratios Standalone Operation as per SEBI
Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018

BEIEY 20201
Debtors Turnover 13.50 times 11.70 times
Inventory Turnover 6.16 times  5.04 times
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.03times  0.04 times
Current Ratio 1.56 1.67
Debt Equity Ratio = -
Operating Profit Margin (%) 9.48 12.08
Net Profit Margin (%) 9.23 10.82
Return on Net Worth 16.22 18.08

(RONW) (%)

Growth Strategy and Outlook
Catering to evolving customer demand

The Company is committed to developing personalised
products as per varied customer needs. Its vast
portfolio, technical know-how, and robust manufacturing
capabilities lead to the production of quality, higher-
margin products, including more cultured grades of
technical PU foam.

Strengthening distribution reach and exports

The Company strives to enhance its domestic retail
presence and continues to sell its economy products in
the rural market. Greater infrastructure development and



expanding distribution channels in newer geographies
will enable the Company to widen its reach and fulfil
demand for low-priced products. Further, it also
focusses on strengthening its exports business by way
of new product and technology development, capacity
expansions in overseas subsidiaries, etc.

Enhancing product development and branding activities

Starlite and Feather Foam, the Company's economy
mattresses provide adequate growth levers to expand
in the rural retail market. It focusses on stepping up
investments in brand building activities to up its brand
presence and customer recall and enhance distribution
and retail network. Further, it aims to launch competitively
priced products to gain higher volumes.

Increase e-commerce penetration

In line with the evolving trends, the Company has
been leveraging e-commerce platform for the sale of
mattresses and allied products. In addition to using its
own website to showcase product line-up and attract
sales, it is also listed on popular e-commerce platforms
to market its products. It endeavours to strengthen
its top-line and bottom-line performance with higher
e-commerce penetration.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
Macro-economic Risk

Newer variants of the COVID-19 pandemic and
subsequent restrictions, slowdown in economic growth
and end-user industries viz. housing, hospitality, and
automotive sectors may impact the growth of the
Company'’s business.

Mitigation

o Favourable government reforms, increasing
investments in infrastructure development are all
expected to reinvigorate economic growth. The
government and major financial institutions have
enforced a host of reform packages to prevent
economic fallout from the COVID-19 pandemic and
boost consumer sentiments.

e An important factor boosting the growth of
organised mattress market is rapid urbanisation,
rising income levels and growing awareness for high-
quality, premium products and services.

e The Company’s subsidiaries in Australia and Spain
helps to penetrate into the overseas market and
reduce over-dependence on the Indian economy.

Competition Risk

The industry faces stiff competition from increasing
number of organised mattress market players due to
attractive growth opportunities. Inability to produce
high-quality, customised products to meet the evolving
customer demands may lead to loss of market share.

& SheelaFoam

Mitigation

e The Company has established itself as a preferred
and trusted brand by producing comfortable and
quality mattresses and home comfort products.
Its flagship brand Sleepwell enjoys high customer
satisfaction and reliability.

. Enhanced investments in R&D and innovative
technologies enable the Company to produce
technologically advanced and premium products.
Further, the Company's operations are supported
by advanced manufacturing equipment and
improvised shop floor operations which provide high
operational advantage.

e The Company aims to offer high-quality mattresses
through pioneering technology initiatives like
Comfort Cell, Neem Fresche. Moreover, its vast
distribution network helps the Company to augment
sales of its products.

e  The Company also focusses on catering to certain
niche sections with its economy mattresses. It helps
the Company maintain its industry-leading position
within the unorganised sector.

Inventory Risk

Huge pile-up of inventory due to unsuccessful marketing
and selling of products may pose challenges to the
Company's operations.

Mitigation

e The Company through its wide distribution network
of over 102 exclusive distributors, 13,323 retail
dealers, 7,899 multi-brand and 5,424 exclusive brand
outlets ensures balanced and orderly sales.

e The Company banks on its superior brand
prominence and consistently invests in branding
and advertising costs to enhance its presence across
various mediums.

e It ensures efficient product distribution with the
help of robust IT infrastructure and inventory
management. The system ensures real-time
inventory management and makes product available
on time.

Raw Material Risk

The Company's business is largely dependent on
seamless and uninterrupted supply of raw materials;
any supply disruptions may adversely impact production
of quality products. Raw materials those are imported,
currency and exchange rate fluctuations may also impact
the margins and profitability.

Mitigation

e The Company makes bulk purchases of key raw
materials (Polyol and TDI) at competitive rates.
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It strikes a balance between imports and local
procurement of raw materials.

e The Company's strong and well-established relations
helps it to procure raw material at optimal prices.

o It reduces the risk of raw material shortage in
unforeseen circumstances by having sufficient stock
of raw materials to meet the market demand.

Counterfeiting Risk

Another important challenge is the inability of the
Company to resolve product counterfeiting and quality
issues, which may result in loss of customer trust and
sales and damage to Company’s brand name.

Mitigation

e The Company periodically checks the market to
track and avoid sales of fraudulent and counterfeit
products.

e  Continued investments towards introduction of
Unique Serial Number/marks/label/hologram/hot
stamp, etc. in mattresses enables the Company to
check genuine products.

E-commerce Risk

The pandemic has brought a fundamental shift in
consumer trends globally and in India towards rapid
adoption of technology, online shopping, increased
comfort and convenience at home, etc. Inability of the
Company to embrace digitisation and technology to keep
up with evolving trends may impact its business and
market share.

Mitigation

e The Company sells its product in the name of SleepX
on its own website as well as popular e-commerce
platforms such as Amazon, Flipkart, etc.

e The Company focusses on harmonising offline and
online sales to create a seamless buying experience
for customers across all the channels.

Internal Controls

The Company has a well-framed internal control
framework commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. Well-documented policies and procedures

32 | Sheela Foam Limited

enable it to strictly adhere to all applicable procedures
and statutes and ensure safeguarding of assets and
timely reporting of financial transactions. Periodic audits
are conducted by an independent firm of internal auditors
to ensure the efficacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. The Audit Committee periodically reviews and
takes suitable actions for any deviation, observation or
recommendation suggested by the internal auditors. The
Company's robust IT systems safeguard its sensitive data
and ease out the audit process. Accounting Standards are
strictly followed while recording transactions. A host of
strategies are devised in addition to robust MIS systems,
for real-time reporting, so as to control expenses.

Human Resources

Human capital is pivotal to the organisational growth and
success. The Company has an experienced and skilled
pool of employees who ensure business continuity,
devise strategies and processes to respond to an evolving
business environment. The Company conducts several
human resource initiatives to enhance the productivity of
the employees and the organisation. It fosters a safe and
conducive work environment and ensures equal access to
all to career advancement opportunities. Such initiatives
enable the Company to attract and retain the best talent
and boost employee morale and productivity. A hybrid
working culture was adopted during the pandemic, work
from home was encouraged, and virtual connect was
established to ensure employee safety. All employees
were also covered under medical insurance to provide
them adequate financial security. As on 315t March, 2022,
the employee strength of the Company stood at 2,779.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report that describe your Company's
projections, estimates and expectations are “forward-
looking statements”. They are within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results
could differ from those expressed or implied depending
upon the economic conditions affecting demand/supply,
price scenario in the domestic and international markets
in which it operates, changes in government regulations,
tax laws and other statutes. Your Company undertakes
no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise
any forward-looking statements on the basis of any
subsequent development, information or events.



Directors’ Report

Dear Members,
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 50" Annual Report on the business, operations and financial performance
of the Company along with the Consolidated Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended

315t March, 2022.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(X in Crores)

Particulars

Consolidated Standalone

Revenue from operations 2981.81 2473.19 2124.44 1693.86
E;:Z;Esioarleltl;lrr;anaal Charges, Depreciation, Tax & 394.10 414.40 304.06 284.67
Profit before Financial Charges, Depreciation & Tax 394.10 414.40 304.06 284.67
Less: Financial Charges 16.97 17.68 7.11 8.68
Cash Profit 377.13 396.71 296.95 275.99
Less: Depreciation 80.78 72.87 32.39 32.53
Profit before Tax 296.35 323.84 264.56 243.46
Add/(Less): Income Tax Earlier year's tax (83.48) (84.18) (70.71) (60.81)
Add/(Less): Deferred Tax 5.85 0.49 3.47 (1.50)
Profit after Tax 218.72 240.15 197.32 181.15
Other Comprehensive Income (1.85) 18.81 (1.16) 2.10
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 216.87 258.96 196.15 183.25

During the current year, Net Revenue of the Company, on
standalone basis, increased from ¥ 1698 Crores to ¥ 2124
Crores. The Profit after tax for the current year increased
by more than 8.9% to ¥ 197 Crores as against the profit
after tax of ¥ 181 Crores of last year.

On Consolidated basis the Overall Revenue increased
from T 2437 crores to ¥ 2982 Crores. The Consolidated
profit after tax decreased from ¥ 240 Crores to ¥ 219
Crores.

PRESENT STATUS & FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the partial lockdown throughout the year, the sale
of Mattresses increased. The Company has increased its
share in the domestic mattress market. The company
continues to retain its leadership position in Mattress and
Foam Products.

During the year the prices of critical raw materials like
Polyol and TDl increased substantially.

Second wave of Covid 19 has come with more severity in
year 2021-22. This has resulted in lock down in most parts
of the Country. This has adversely impacted the sales of
April and May 2021. Your Company is using innovative
techniques, like Sleepwell@Home, Aggressive Online
Marketing, focus on selling products which are good for
health etc. Company is selling all its products treated

with Neem Fresche which means immunity from various
respiratory problems caused by Dust Mites, Bacteria &
Fungi.

The Company has increased its Market share by selling
low price mattresses. This has caused shift from
unorganized market to organized market. The Company
has also increased its market penetration and lot of
Multi Brand Outlets have been converted to Exclusive
Branded Outlets of Sleepwell. Company also maintains
its leadership position in Foam Market both in Furniture
cushions and B2B segment. It continues to innovate
foams for newer applications.

The Company has focused to exports to US markets from
India and Spain. It expects to make substantial exports
to US markets from India as well as from its subsidiary
in Spain.

DIVIDEND

Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for
the year 2021-22. The entire profit is being ploughed back
in the business.

SUBSIDIARIES

As on 31 March, 2022 the Company has six subsidiaries
and five steps down subsidiaries. As required under the
provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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read with Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2013, a statement
containing salient features of the financial statements of
subsidiaries is provided in the prescribed format AOC-1 as
Annexure-A of the Board Report.

Overseas Subsidiaries:-

The Company has one 100% subsidiary, Joyce Foam Pty.
Ltd (Joyce Foam) Australia. Joyce Foam is the largest
producer of Foam in Australia and supplies its high-quality
Foam to Global Mattresses and Furnishing Companies.
Joyce Foam recorded a turnover of ¥ 430 Crore in FY 2021-22,
as compared with ¥ 413 Crore in FY 2020-21, and has
posted post tax profit of ¥ 15 Crore in FY 2021-22, as
against ¥ 27 Crore in FY 2020-21.

Joyce Foam Pty Ltd has one wholly own subsidiary Joyce
W C NSW Pty Ltd.

In addition, the Company has one more wholly owned
overseas subsidiary, International Foam Technologies
Spain, S.L.U. and a step down subsidiary, Interplasp
S.L.U. Spain. International Foam Technologies Spain,
S.L.U. recorded a turnover of ¥ 430 crore in FY 2021-22, as
compared with ¥ 336 crore in FY 2020-21, and has posted
post tax profit of ¥ 18 Crore in FY 2021-22, as against 335
Crore in FY 2020-21.

Indian Subsidiaries:-

Staqo World Private Limited (Staqo) is a wholly owned
subsidiary. This company is into the business of
Information Technology with initial footprints in this
space in domestic and overseas market. During this year,
the company has achieved a turnover of ¥ 18 crores with
profit after tax of ¥ 2 Crores as against a turnover of ¥ 13
crores with a profit after tax of ¥ 3 crores in FY 2020-21.

Your Company has three other wholly owned subsidiaries
as under:

1) Divya Software Solutions Private Limited
2) Sleepwell Enterprises Private Limited

3) Internationl Comfort Technologies Pvt Ltd

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

In accordance with Regulation 16 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (Listing
Regulations), none of the subsidiaries is a material
non-listed subsidiary. The Company has formulated a
policy for determining material subsidiaries. The policy
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
http://www.sheelafoam.com.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the applicable Accounting Standard on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, your Directors have
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attached the consolidated financial statements of the
Company which form a part of the Annual Report.

The financial statements including consolidated
financial statements and the audited accounts of each
of the subsidiary are available on the Company’s website
www.sheelafoam.com

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the directors would like to state that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the Company for the year
under review.

c¢) The directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on
a going concern basis.

e) The directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are
operating effectively; and

f)  The directors had devised proper system to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In accordance with SEBI Regulations, a separate report on
Corporate Governance is given in Annexure-B along with
the Auditors’ Certificate on its compliance. The Auditors’
Certificate does not contain any qualification, reservation
and adverse remark.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of Contracts or arrangements with
related parties, in the prescribed form, are attached as
Annexure-C

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy
duly reviewed by the Board of Directors. The policy
includes risk identification, analysis and prioritization



of risk and development of risk mitigation plans. The
Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee
to look into the risk involved with the Company and its
mitigation.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial
controls with reference tofinancial statements. During the
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operations were observed. The
report on the Internal Financial Control issued by M/s.
MSKA & Associates., Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company in view of the provisions under
the Companies Act, 2013 is given in their audit report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(KMP)

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.
Tushaar Gautam will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and
being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The Board has
recommended his reappointment.

Board also recommends the reappointment of Mr. Rahul
Gautam as a Managing Director whose term ends on 31+
March 2022 for a period of five (5) years from 1t April 2022 to
31t March 2027, re-appointment of Mrs. Namita Gautam as
a Whole-time Director whose term ends on 31t March 2022
for a period of five (5) years from 1=t April 2022 to 31t March
2027, re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Chahar as a Whole-
time Director whose term ends on 315t March 2022 for a
period of Five years from 1t April 2022 to 315t March 2027
and re-appointment of Mr. Tushaar Gautam as a Whole-time
Director whose term ends on 315t March 2022 for a period of
Five years from 15t April 2022 to 315t March 2027.

Mr Nikhil Datye was appointed w.e.f 15t June 2021 as
group CFO and Mr Dhruv Mathur had superannuated
during the year.

Board further recommends the increase in second term of
Mr. Som Mittal, Independent Director from four (4) years
to five (5) years, Mr. Anil Tandon, Independent Director
from three (3) years to five (5) years, Lt. Gen. (Dr.) V.K.
Ahluwalia, Independent Director from three (3) years
to five (5) years and Ms. Meena Jagtiani, Independent
Director from three (3) years to five (5) years.

AUDITORS

M/s MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for
the five consecutive financial years from 2021-22 to 2025-
26 and they will hold office until the conclusion of the 54t
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
year 2026.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

There is no adverse observation of Auditors’ on financial
statements of the company. The Auditors’ Report, read
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with the relevant notes to accounts are self-explanatory
and therefore does not require further explanation.

CONSOLIDATED FEES PAID TO STATUTORY
AUDITORS

Detail of total fees for all services paid by the listed
entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to
the statutory auditor and all entities in the network
firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditor is a
part, as mentioned in Note 38 of Consolidated Financial
Statement published through annual reports for the
Financial Year 2021-22, are as below:-

Consolidated

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
N EY W ly¥E 31 March, 2021
Audit Fees 41 29.04
Certification Work 2 3.54
Reimbursement of 1 0.74
expenses
Total 44 32.32
COST AUDITOR

As per section 148 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 M/s Mahesh Singh & Co, Cost
Accountants were appointed, to conduct the cost records
of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22, by the
Board of Directors.

Cost Auditor will provide its report to the Board of
directors.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The company has engaged M/s S. S. Kothari Mehta
& Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor to
conduct internal audit for the year 2021-22. The Internal
Auditor report to Board of Directors. The internal audit
will help company to review the operational efficiency
and assessing the internal controls. It also reviews the
safeguarding of assets of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The company has engaged M/s AVA Associates, Company
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial
audit for the year 2021-22. The report on secretarial audit
is annexed as Annexure-D to the Board's Report. The
report does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY(CSR)

In terms of Companies Act, 2013, your company has to
undertake Corporate Social Responsibility programme.
The disclosure as per Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rule, 2014 is attached as
Annexure-E.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of Audit Committee is provided in the
Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this
Annual Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism through
a Whistle Blower Policy. The Company can oversee the
genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other
Directors. The Company has also provided adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees and
Directors who may express their concerns pursuant to
this policy. The policy is uploaded on the website of the
Company at http://www.sheelafoam.com.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment
policy in line with the requirements of sexual harassment
of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013. The Internal system has been set
up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, 6 meetings of the Board of Directors
were held.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 form part of the Financial Statements.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

A. Following measures were taken by company for
energy conservation in the year 21-22:

1) Installed 376 KWp solar power plant at Greater
Noida unit to reduce the electricity consumption
from power distribution company, It helps to
generate app. 60% of our total demand through
solar power.

2) Replaced 10 nos. of electric hoist with hydraulic
power pack at foaming crane , it results into
increasing the efficiency of the machine and
saving of electricity.

3) Increased use of Screw compressors for
compressed air with variable frequency drives
instead of starter to increase the efficiency and
saving of electricity.

4) Conducted third party energy audits to identify
the potential opportunities for energy saving
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andfurtheroptimizationin energy consumption.
This is an ongoing process that the Company
will continue across all manufacturing locations.

5) Replaced conventional MH and street lights
with 100% energy efficient LED lights across all
the units with LDR,Lux, Time switch and motion
sensor based control system.

6) Optimization of running time of AC on the basis
of ambient temperature condition inside the
UPS room.

7) Replaced old Air conditioner with energy
efficient new generation Air conditioner with
non-CFC gases, lead to reduction in power
consumption as well as nothing to harm Ozone
layer.

8) Increasing the use of Variable Frequency drives
instead of starters for the electric motors to
reduce the electricity consumption and to
increase the efficiency.

B. TheexpensesincurredonResearchandDevelopment
have been included in respective expense heads.

C. The Company has introduced new process to
reduce the consumption of energy and upgraded
technology whenever required.

D. The earnings from exports were 35499
Crore(Previous Year % 21.33 crores) and payments in
foreign exchange were ¥183.81 Crore (Previous Year
141.81crores).

LISTING AGREEMENTS

Your Company has entered into agreements with
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), in compliance
with Regulation 109 of the SEBI LODR Regulations 2015.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information as required under Section 197 of
the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5(1) and 5(2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in
Annexure-F and Annexure-G to the Board's Report.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of provisions of Regulation 34 of the Listing
Regulations, the Management's discussion and analysis
is set out in this Annual Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.



SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant and material orders passed by
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company'’s operations in future.

BOARD EVALUATION MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, those of
directors individually and of various committees.

The performance of individual directors was evaluated
on parameters, such as, number of meetings attended,
contribution in the growth and formulating the strategy of
the Company, independence of judgement, safeguarding
the interest of the Company and minority shareholders,
time devoted apart from attending the meetings of the
Company, active participation in long term strategic
planning, ability to contribute by introducing best
practices to address business challenges and risk etc. The
directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Business Responsibility Report/Sustainability Report is
annexed as Annexure-H.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The company has adopted Dividend Distribution
Policy and there is no change in policy during the
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year. As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the policy is hosted
at our web site at www.sheelafoam.com and is also
attached as Annexure-l.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to express and place on record
their thanks to the Company's Distributors, Dealers
and Business Associates for their excellent effort and
the customers for their continued patronage of the
Company'’s products. Your Directors also wish to place
on record their appreciation for the devoted services of
the Executive, Staff, and workers of the Company at all
levels enabling the Company to achieve the excellent
performance during the year.

Your Directors also appreciate the valuable co-operation
and continued support received from Company's bankers
and all the government agencies and departments.

The Directors also express their sincere thanks to all the
Shareholders for the continued support and trust they
have reposed in the Management.

By Order and on behalf of the
Board of Sheela Foam Limited

Place: Noida
Date : May 12, 2022

(Rahul Gautam)
Chairman and Managing Director

Annual Report 2021-22 | 37

w
&+
<3}
I
c
-
o
=3
~<
A
[])
O
o
=
P
("]




& sieepwell

Annexure-A

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint ventures

(% in Lakhs)
Name of the subsidiary Joyce Divya  Sleepwell Staqo International International
Foam Pty Software Enterprises World Foam Comfort
Ltd Solutions Pvt Ltd Private Technologies Technologies
Pvt Ltd Limited Spain S.L. Private
Limited
Place of incorporation Australia India India India Spain India
Date of i tion / isiti 03-10- 19-04- 07-10-1994 26-03- 12-06-2019  01/10/2021
ate of incorporation / acquisition 2005 2010 5020
Reporting period for the subsidiary N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
concerned, if different from the
holding company's reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange AUD N.A. N.A. N.A. EURO N.A.
rate as on the last date of the AUD= INR EURO=INR
relevant Financial year in the case 55.06 82.13
of foreign subsidiaries
Share capital 3625.70 9.46 1.05 1.00 9858.06 3000
Reserves & surplus 11968.14  5805.36 250.49 498.98 5864.03 -721.21
Total assets 39668.73  5821.95 259.68 705.81 46666.35 13702.87
Total Liabilities 24074.89 7.12 8.14 205.90 30129.94 11424.07
Investments - - 105.19 409.40 25.00 -
Turnover 42952.18 26.24 10.00 1750.63 43002.64 762.96
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 1962.82  (363.95) 19.68 216.19 2233.30 -873.68
Provision for taxation 546.55 (2.57) 5.08 64.91 578.37 -149.92
Profit after taxation 1416.27 (366.52) 14.60 151.88 1654.93 -723.76
Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Note-

1. Joyce Foam Pty Ltd, Divya Software Solutions Private Limited, Sleepwell Enterprises Private Limited, Stago World Private
Limited and International Foam Technologies Spain S.L. and International comfort technologies private limited are wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company.

2. Joyce W C NSW Pty Ltd (Australia), Interplasp SIU ( Spain), Staqo World KFT (Hungry), Stago Inc USA & Staqo Technologies LLC

(UAE) are step down subsidiaries.
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Annexure-B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Our Corporate Governance is a true reflection of our
value systems enshrined in our Vision Statement. Our
Vision statement places highest reliance on the values
of Integrity, Reliability, Proactivity and Transparency. We
firmly believe that Corporate Governance, based on these
value systems, is vital to not only enhance stakeholders’
trust, but also for the success of the organisation. Your
company remains committed to follow best governance
practices in true spirit.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ("BOARD")

The Company is managed and guided by the Board of
Directors. The Board formulates the strategy and regularly
reviews the performance of the Company. The Board has
been entrusted with the requisite powers, authorities
and duties to enable it to discharge its responsibilities
and provide effective leadership to the Business. The
Company has an optimum combination of Executive,
Non-Executive and Independent Directors who are
eminent persons with professional expertise and valuable
experience in their respective areas of specialisation and
bring a wide range of skills and experience to the Board.

The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
provides vision and leadership for achieving the approved
strategic plan and business objectives. He presides over
the Board and the Shareholders’ meetings. The Managing
Director with the support of the Whole-time Directors
and Senior Executives oversees the operations of
the Company.

As on the date of this report the Board comprises of
10 (Ten) Directors, which include 6 (Six) Non-Executive
Independent Directors and 4 (Four) Executive Directors.
There are 2 (Two) Women Directors one of whom is
Independent Director.

During the financial year None of the Independent
Directors of the Company served as an Independent
Director in more than seven listed Companies. The
composition of the Board is in line with Regulation 17 of
Listing Regulations. None of the Directors on the Board is
aMember on more than 10 Committees, and Chairperson
of more than 5 Committees across all listed companies
in which he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures
regarding Committee positions have been made by
the Directors.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors met Six times during the financial
year ended on March 31, 2022. Board Meetings were held
on 24 April, 2021, 29 May, 2021, 14 August 2021, 15t Sept
2021, 29 Oct 2021 and 02 February, 2022
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The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings was
less than one hundred twenty days.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All independent Directors have confirmed that they
meet the criteria as stipulated under Regulation 16(1)
(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (Listing Regulations) read with Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The maximum tenure of Independent directors is in
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the terms
and conditions of their appointment have been disclosed
on the website of the Company (web link http://www.
sheelafoam.com).

Regulation 25(3) of Listing Regulations read with
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
under it mandate that the Independent Directors of the
Company hold at least one meeting in a year without the
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members
of the management. During the year, separate meeting
of the Independent Directors was held on 1=t Feb, 2022
without the attendance of non-independent directors
and members of the management. All the Independent
Directors attended the said meeting. The independent
directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-
independent directors, Chairman of the Company and
the Board as a whole.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board/Committee members are provided with
the necessary documents/brochures, reports and
internal policies, codes of conduct to enable them to
familiarise with the Company's procedure and practices.
Directors are regularly updated on performance of the
business of the Company, business strategy going
forward and new initiative being taken/proposed to be
taken by the Company through presentation by head
of the Departments. Factory/office visits are organised
from time to time for the Directors. The policy of
the familiarisation programme of the Independent
Directors are available on the Company's website at
http://www.sheelafoam.com.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The composition of the Board of Directors at the end
of Financial Year i.e 31 March, 2022, their attendance
at the Meetings during the year and at the last Annual
General Meeting as also the detail with regard to outside
Directorships and committee positions are as under:-
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Name of the Category Number Attendance No.of other No. of Committee positions
Director and DIN of in Last AGM Directorship held including other
meeting  held on 20 in listed Companies##
attended August, company -
2021 including Chairman Member
this company
Rahul Gautam# Promoter &
00192999 Executive Director é ves ! 0 0
Namita Gautam# . .
00190463 Executive Director 6 Yes 1 0 1
Rakesh Chahar . .
00180587 Executive Director 6 Yes 1 0 1
Tushaar Gautam# . .
01646487 Executive Director 6 Yes 1 0 1
Vijay Kumar Chopra Independent
02103940 Director é ves 3 2 >
Som Mittal Independent
00074842 Director 6 ves 2 ! 3
Ravindra Dhariwal Independent
00003922 Director é Yes 3 0 7
Anil Tandon Independent
00089404 Director 6 ves ! 0 !
Vijay Kumar
Ahluwalia independent 6 Yes 1 0 1
08078092
Meena Jagtiani Independent
08396893 Director é ves ! ! !

Mr. Rahul Gautam, Managing Director is husband of Ms. Namita Gautam and father of Mr. Tushaar Gautam and are thus related.

## The committees considered for the purpose are those prescribed under Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations i.e. Audit Committee
and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Indian public limited companies whether listed or not.

BOARD FUNCTIONING AND PROCEDURE

Board Meeting Frequency and circulation of
Agenda papers: The Board and its Committees
meet at regular intervals for discussion on agenda
circulated well in advance by the Company. All
material information is incorporated in the agenda
for facilitating meaningful and focused discussion
at the meeting. Where it is not practical to attach,
or send the relevant information as a part of agenda
papers, the same are tabled at the Meeting. To
meet the business exigencies or urgent matters
the resolutions are passed by the Directors by
Circulation.

The Company has proper systems to enable the
Board to periodically review compliance reports of
all laws applicable to the Company, as prepared by
the Company as well as steps taken by the Company
to rectify instances of non-compliances. The Board
reviewed compliance reports prepared by the
Company periodically.

Presentations by the Management: The Senior
Management of the Company is invited at the Board
meetings to provide presentation/clarifications as
and when necessary.
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Access to Employees: The Directors bring an
independent perspective on the issues deliberated
by the Board. They have access to any information
of the Company as they may need to discharge their
duties and to any employee of the Company.

Availability of Information to Board members
include:

1. Annual operating plans and budgets and any
updates thereof;

2. Capital budgets and any updates thereof;

3. Quarterly results of the Company and its
operating divisions and business segments;

4. Minutes of Meetings of the Audit Committee
and other Committees of the Board;

5. Recruitmentand remuneration of senior officers
just below board level, including appointment
and removal of Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary;

6. Materially important show cause, demand,
prosecution and penalty notices report;



7. Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous
occurrences, any material effluent or pollution
problems;

8. Any material default in financial obligations
to and by the Company, or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the Company;

9. Any issue which involves possible public or
product liability claims of substantial nature,
including any judgement or order which, may
have passed strictures on the conduct of the
Company or taken an adverse view regarding
another enterprise that can have negative
implications on the Company;

10. Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agreement;

11. Transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property;

12. Significant labour problems and their proposed
solutions. Any significant development in
Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front like
signing of wage agreement, implementation of
Voluntary Retirement Scheme, etc.;

13. Sale of material nature, of investments,
subsidiaries and assets which is not in the
normal course of business;

14. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures
and the steps taken by management to limit the
risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if
material; and

15. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory
nature or listing requirements and shareholders
service such as non-payment of dividend, delay
in share transfer, etc.

Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors:

During the year under review, Independent Directors,
Mrs. Meena Jagtiani reappointed for a period of 3 (three)
year w.e.f. 8t April 2022.

The information/details pertaining to Directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM), is provided in the Notice for the
AGM.

The Notice contains the relevant information, like brief
resume of the Directors and terms.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises of four Directors which
include three Non-Executive Independent Directors and
one Executive Director of the Company. The Chairman
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of the Committee is Mr Som Mittal a Non Executive
Independent Director.

The constitution and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee meet the requirements of Regulation 18 of
the Listing Regulations read with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary is
the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Audit Committee met 4 (four) times during financial
year 2021-22 ended on 31 March, 2022 on 29 May, 2021,
14 August 2021, 29t Oct 2021 and 02 Feb, 2022.

The maximum gap between any two meetings was less
than four months. The attendance of each Committee
Member is as under:-

Name of the Director and No. of meetings

DIN Held Attended
Mr. Som Mittal (Chairman) 4 4
Mr. Ravindra Dhariwal 4 4
Mr. V. K. Chopra 4 4
Mr. Tushaar Gautam 4 4

Mr. Som Mittal, Chairman of the Audit Committee
attended the 49" Annual General Meeting.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

(i) The Audit Committee shall have powers, which
should include the following:

(a) To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference;

(b) To seek information from any employee of the
Company;

(c) To obtain outside legal or other professional
advice; and

(d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

(i) The role of the Audit Committee shall include the
following:

(a) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process, examination of the financial statement
and the auditors’ report thereon and the
disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible;

(b) Recommendation for appointment, re-
appointment and replacement, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company and the fixation of audit fee;
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()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for
any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors of the Company;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

(i) Matters required to be included in the
Director's Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-Section 3 of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013;

(i) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

(iii) Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgement by the management of the
Company;

(iv) Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

(v) Compliance with listing and other
legal requirements relating to financial
statements

(vi) Disclosure of any related party

transactions; and

(vii) Qualifications / modified opinion(s) in the
draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the
statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps
in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence
and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Formulating a policy on related party
transactions, which shall include materiality of
related party transactions;
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()

(u)

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related
parties and omnibus approval for related party
transactions proposed to be entered into by the
Company subject to such conditions as may be
prescribed;
Scrutiny  of loans and
investments;

inter-corporate

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function, if any, including the structure of
the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors;

Recommending to the board of directors the
appointment and removal of the external
auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for
payment for any other services;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

Approval of the appointment of the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (i.e., the
whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate;



(v) Overseeing the vigil mechanism including to
whom directors and employee shall report in
case of any concern; and

(w) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned
in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

(iii) The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:

(a) Management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations;

(b) Statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee), submitted by the management of
the Company;

(c) Management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors of
the Company;

(d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses;

() The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall
be subject to review by the Audit Committee;

(f) Statement of deviations:

(i) quarterly statement of deviation(s)
including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s)
in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations; and

(i) annual statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/prospectus/notice in
terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations;

(g) review thefinancial statements, in particular, the
investments made by any unlisted subsidiary.

Nomination and remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Ravindra Dhariwal a Non-Executive
Independent Director. The Committee comprises of the
following Directors:

1. Mr. Ravindra Dhariwal- Chairman, Independent
Director

2. Mr. Som Mittal-Independent Director

3. Mrs. Meena Jagtiani- Independent Director
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The constitution and term of reference of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) meet the
requirements of Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations
read with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

Meetings and Attendance

Nomination and remuneration Committee met 4 (four)
times during financial year 2021-22 ended on 31 March,
2022 on 24 April, 2021, 28 May, 2021, 30 August 2021 and
29 Oct 2021.

Name of the Members No. of meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Ravindra Dhariwal 4 4
(Chairman)
Mrs. Meena Jagtiani 2 2
Mr Som Mittal 4 4
MrV K Chopra 2 2

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

(a) Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

(b) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
of Independent Directors and the Board;

(c) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

(d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors of the Company and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with
the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal. The company shall
disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria in its Annual Report of the Company;

(e) Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human
resource and compensation matters;

(f) Determining the company's policy on specific
remuneration packages for executive directors
including pension rights and any compensation
payment, and determining remuneration packages
of such directors;

(g) Determining compensation levels payable to the
senior management personnel and other staff (as
deemed necessary), usually consisting of a fixed and
variable component;

(h) Reviewing and approving compensation strategy

from time to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;
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(i) Determining whether to extend or continue the term
of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;

() Administering the “Sheela Foam Employee Stock
Option Scheme 2016" (the “Plan”);

(k) Determining the eligibility of employees to
participate under the Plan;

() Granting options to eligible employees and
determining the date of grant;

(m) Determining the number of options to be granted to
an employee;

(n) Determining the exercise price under the Plan;

(o) Construing and interpreting the Plan and any
agreements defining the rights and obligations of the
Company and eligible employees under the Plan, and
prescribing, amending and/or rescinding rules and
regulations relating to the administration of the Plan;

(p) Framing suitable policies, procedures and systems
to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws,
as amended from time to time, including:

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; and

b. the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices Relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the Company
and its employees, as applicable.”

(q) Performingsuch other activities as may be delegated
by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship

Committee is Mrs Meena Jagtianil, a Non-Executive
Independent Director. The Committee comprises of the
following Directors:

1. MrsMeenalagtiani-Independent Director (Chairman)

2. Mr. Anil Tandon-Independent Director

3. Mr Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia- Executive Director

44 I Sheela Foam Limited

The constitution and term of reference of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee (SRC) meet the requirements of
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations read with the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings and Attendance

Stakeholder Relationship Committee met 1 (one) time
during financial year 2021-22 ended on 31 March, 2022 on
28 Oct 2021.

Name of the Members No. of meetings

Held Attended
Mrs Meena Jagtiani 1 1
(Chairperson)
Mr. Anil Tandon 1 1
Mr. Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia 1 1

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

(a) Redressal of all security holders’ and investors’
grievances such as complaints related to transfer
of shares, including non receipt of share certificates
and review of cases for refusal of transfer/
transmission of shares and debentures, non-receipt
of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends,
non-receipt of annual reports, etc. and assisting with
quarterly reporting of such complaints;

(b) Investigating complaints relating to allotment of
shares, approval of transfer or transmission of
shares, debentures or any other securities;

(c) Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares
and debentures, dematerialization of shares and re-
materialization of shares, splitand issue of duplicate/
consolidated share certificates, compliance with all
the requirements related to shares, debentures and
other securities from time to time; and

(d) Overseeing the performance of the registrars and
transfer agents of our Company and to recommend
measures for overall improvement in the quality of
investor services.

Details of Investor complaints

During the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2022, the
Company not received complaint from investors relating
to non-allotment/transfer of Shares. Details of investor
complaints received and resolved during the Financial
Year are as follows:

Opening Balance Received Resolved Pending
Nil Nil Nil Nil




Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Chairperson of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee is Mr. Anil Tandon a Non-Executive
Independent Director. The Committee comprises
following Executive and Non-Executive Independent
Directors:-

1.  Mr. Anil Tandon-Independent Director (Chairperson)
2. Mr. Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia-Independent Director

3. Ms. Namita Gautam- Executive Director

4. Mrs. Meena Jagtiani- Independent Director

Meetings and Attendance

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 (two)

& SheelaFoam

Independent Director. The Committee comprises

following Executive and Non-Executive Independent
Directors:-

1. Lt Gen (Dr.) V. K. Ahluwalia- Independent Director
Mr Som Mittal- Independent Director

Mr. Rakesh Chahar- Executive Director

INEEVIEN

Mr. Tushaar Gautam-Executive Director

Meetings and Attendance

Risk Management Committee met 2 (Two) time during
financial year 2021-22 ended on 31 March, 2022 on 30 July
2021 and 13 Jan 2022.

Name of the Members No. of meeting

time during financial year 2021-22 ended on 31 March, Held Attended
2022 on 29 May 2021 and 14 Dec 2021. Lt Gen (Dr.) Vijay Kumar 2 2
Ahluwalia
Name of the Members No. of meetings Mr. Rakesh Chahar 2 2
Held Attended Mr. Tushaar Gautam 2 2
Mr. Anil Tandon (Chairman) 2 2 Mr. Som Mittal 2 2
Mr. Vijay Kumar Ahluwalia 1 1 . o .
Mr. Meena Jagtiani 1 1 Committee Responsibilities and Authority
Ms. Namita Gautam 2 2 The committee shall evaluate significant risk exposures

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

(a) To formulate and recommend to the board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by
the company as specified in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013 and make any revisions therein
as and when decided by the Board;

(b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the activities referred to in Policy of
company on CSR, Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under and any
amendment thereof ;

() To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy of the company from time to time; and

(d) To do such other acts, deeds and things as may be
directed by the board and required to comply with
the applicable laws.”

Risk Management Committee

The Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee is
Lt. Gen (Dr.) V. K. Ahluwalia (Chairman) a Non-Executive

of the company and assess management's actions to
mitigate the exposures in a timely manner.

The committee will coordinate its activities with the
audit committee in instances where there is any overlap
with audit activities (e.g. internal or external audit issue
relating to risk management policy or practice).

The committee shall make reports to the board, including
with respect to risk management and minimization
procedures.

The board shall review the performance of the committee.

The committee shall have access to any internal
information of the company necessary to fulfil its
oversight role. The committee shall also have the
authority to obtain advice and assistance from internal or
external experts /advisors.

The role and responsibilities of the committee shall
include such other items as may be prescribed by
applicable law or the board in compliance with applicable
law, from time to time.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of the last three Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meeting are as follows:

Annual General Meeting

Year Date & Day Location Time Speci